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INTRODUCTIONINTRODUCTION

General Reports primarily summarise the results of annual attest audits, related

reviews of controls, compliance and accountability issues and other

examinations. The over-riding objective is to provide Parliament and other

interested parties with an overview of the standard of accountability across the

Western Australian Public Sector.

Reporting Approach

This report maintains the reporting approach adopted in recent General Reports

and addresses Government-wide and agency specific issues which arose as a

result of financial statement and performance indicator attest audits and

complementary performance examinations including follow ups on certain

performance examinations reported since 1992. It also summarises the outcomes

of completed agency audits under each Minister’s portfolio. A ‘Progress made’

section is again included which comments on action taken by agency

management resulting from the First General Report in 1995 and the Second

General Report in 1994.

General Outcomes from Attest and Compliance Audits

Since my Second General Report for 1995 a further 232 attest audits have been

completed and these are reported in the Ministerial Portfolio and Request and

Other Audit sections of this report. This brings to 344 the number of audits

completed and reported for the 1994–95 audit cycle. All but nine audits with

balance dates in the period July 1, 1994 to June 30, 1995 have now been

completed. Final financial statements for three cemetery boards and six request

audits have yet to be submitted for audit.
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The outcomes of attest audits are reported as follows:

Financial Statement Audit Work

Satisfactory

Where the opinion is qualified, explanations have been provided

Where other significant matters have come to notice they are commented

upon. These matters may draw attention to other unsatisfactory findings,

provide information to Parliament on important developments or

compliment agencies on accounting and related matters.

Other Audit Findings

Results of controls, compliance and accountability examinations

Legal compliance matters

Statistics on each of these areas are detailed in Table 1 below:

Table 1:  Audits Completed

Financial Statement Audits Other Audit Findings

Satisfactory Qualified Other CCA Legal
Findings Opinions Matters Exam Comp

Included in this Report 206 12 14 9 1

Included in Second

  General Report for 1995 98 8 6 29 ni

TOTALS FOR 1994–95

   AUDIT CYCLE 304 20 20 38 1

In addition to completing financial statement audits, work on performance

indicators has also been carried out and details are provided in Table 2 below:

Table 2:  Performance Indicator Audits Completed

Clear Assessment No Indicators

Opinion Issued Submitted

Included in this Report 24 181 1

Included in the Second General

  Report for 1995 35 38 7

TOTALS FOR 1994–95

  AUDIT CYCLE 59 219 8
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Attest Audit Practice Statement

While the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 has not changed greatly,

since its enactment, operational and financial management and reporting has

changed significantly. To assist in understanding the Auditor General’s

relationship with Parliament and with public sector agencies this General Report

includes a section which addresses the role of the Auditor General, scope of

audits and standards of public sector audit and the nature of services and products

in the context that the Parliament is the primary client of the Auditor General.

Good Practice Statements and Other Publications

Consistent with the Office’s mission of providing Parliament with that information

necessary to enhance public sector accountability, good practice statements

and other publications issued by the Office have been included in this General

Report. These statements and publications are prepared as an adjunct to audit

activities to provide support for, and positive contribution towards, improving

the understanding of accountability obligations and are issued from time to time

to agency management and other interested parties.

Acknowledgment

I once again acknowledge and commend the continued efforts of my dedicated

staff in undertaking their exacting and demanding duties. They have applied

themselves in a consistently professional manner and have completed their audit

assignments within tighter timeframes while at the same time coping with

additional demands and the effects of significant change in the entities subject

to audit. I acknowledge their considerable efforts and thank them for their

continued commitment to the public sector audit mandate.

D D R PEARSON

AUDITOR GENERAL

May 8, 1996
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PUBLIC SECTOR ATTESTPUBLIC SECTOR ATTEST
PRACTICE STATEMENTPRACTICE STATEMENT

Introduction

In the Second Volume of his Report to Parliament in 1990, the then Auditor

General noted that

“the statutory relationship between the Auditor General and Parliament

is evidence of a broader social contract of accountability between the

Auditor General and Parliament, as representatives of the public. This

relationship is not widely understood within the framework of public

sector management. To assist in bridging any “audit expectation gap”

due to differing perceptions of my role, I set out below the operational

basis upon which I act as auditor for the Parliament.

It is not intended that this basis provide an exhaustive statement of my

responsibilities, but rather to indicate the significant non-discretionary

areas of the public sector audit mandate.”

Whilst the audit mandate, as legislated in the Financial Administration and Audit

Act 1985, has not changed since 1990, operational and financial management

and reporting has changed significantly resulting in the need to review the audit

practices associated with the Auditor General’s responsibilities under section 79

of the Act.

The aim of this report is to reflect these changes by:

describing the role of the Auditor General;

describing the legislative mandate;

detailing requirements regarding audit opinions;
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describing the standards of public sector audit work;

describing Controls, Compliance and Accountability Examinations; and

clarifying the responsibilities of agency management.

At the outset it is important to understand the nature of the Auditor General’s

relationship with Parliament and public sector agencies. The Auditor General’s

primary client is the Parliament. The audits of public sector agencies are

performed to enable the Auditor General to report to Parliament on the financial,

legal compliance and performance indicators of agencies.

Audit Role

Parliament requires the Auditor General to provide independent opinions on

management’s assertions about the degree to which management has fulfilled

its conferred responsibilities.

The Office is required to:

audit public sector annual financial statements and performance indicators;

conduct performance examinations;

provide an opinion on each public sector entity’s annual financial statements

and performance indicators to the Parliament;

report to Parliament any significant matters; and

provide an opinion on the adequacy of controls in satisfying legislative

provisions.

An audit opinion prepared independently and professionally, adds credibility to

management’s assertions. This allows Parliamentary and other users to place

more reliance than would otherwise be possible on such information. Audit

recommendations, conclusions or findings, adverse comments or audit

qualifications alert the Parliament, and thus the public, to matters of concern.

Legislative Mandate

Audits are performed in accordance with the relevant legislation (Financial

Administration and Audit Act 1985, Corporations Law, Cemeteries Act 1986 or

other statute), and the Office’s internationally recognised audit approach which

satisfies relevant Australian Auditing Standards and Auditing Guidance

Statements. There may be situations where Australian Auditing Standards do

not appropriately address public sector activities and should the Office policy

for conducting audits conflict with auditing standards, the Office policy prevails.
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Key legislative requirements are:

Financial Reports and Performance Indicators – Attest Audits

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985

Section 78 requires the Auditor General to audit the Treasurer’s accounts, the

accounts of departments and statutory authorities and such other accounts as

the Treasurer may require. The audit of the accounts of every department and

statutory authority must be conducted at least each financial year.

Section 79(1) requires the Auditor General to perform these audits in such manner

as he thinks fit in accordance with auditing standards and practices and having

regard to the character and effectiveness of the internal control and internal

audit of the relevant department, statutory authority or other body.

Financial statement audits are designed to provide reasonable assurance that

financial reports are free of material misstatement. Unless they are overridden

by legislation or are otherwise inappropriate for use within the public sector,

audit procedures generally follow Australian Auditing Standards and Auditing

Guidance Statements. The procedures include examination, on a test basis, of

evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in financial reports, and

the evaluation of accounting policies and significant accounting estimates.

The Auditor General is also required to audit performance indicators prepared

by agencies and state whether in his opinion the indicators are relevant and

appropriate having regard to their purpose and fairly represent indicated

performance.

Legislative Compliance Audit Responsibilities

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985

Under section 79(2), the Auditor General is required during the performance of

audits to consider whether the requirements of this Act and every other relevant

written law has been complied with.

The requirement for the Auditor General to consider compliance with every

‘relevant written law’ is open to interpretation. As section 79(l) of the Act requires

the Auditor General to perform audits as he thinks fit, and to enable him to act

as an independent statutory officer, the view is taken that ‘relevant’ means

relevant in the audit context.
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Accordingly, only those requirements relevant to the maintenance of accounts;

presentation of financial statements; and controls over the receipt, expenditure

and investment of moneys, the acquisition and disposal of property, and incurring

of liabilities are usually considered.

Report of the Auditor General

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985

Section 95 requires the Auditor General to report on any matters arising from

his powers, duties and functions and in particular any instances where the

functions of accountable officers or authorities have not been adequately or

properly performed. Such functions include those required by sections 53 and

55 of the Act.

Audits Conducted in Accordance With Other Statutes

The Auditor General is the auditor of a number of agencies which operate and

report under the Corporations Law, Cemeteries Act and various other statutes.

Audit Opinions on Financial Statements
  and Performance Indicators

The following indicates the Auditor General’s understanding of his responsibilities

for audit opinions issued under the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985.

Audit Opinion on Treasurer’s Annual Statements

The Treasurer’s annual statements of receipts and payments for the financial

year disclose transactions of the:

Consolidated Fund;

Treasurer’s Advance Account; and

Trust Fund,

and several other statements submitted for audit by the Treasurer. Included in

the Treasurer’s annual statements are the results of transactions of numerous

departments and statutory authorities which operate on the public bank account.

At the time of issuing the opinion on the Treasurer’s Annual Statements, all audits

of departments and statutory authorities may not be completed.
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Each year the Auditor General prepares, signs and transmits to the Treasurer for

tabling in Parliament an opinion as to whether the Treasurer’s annual statements:

are prepared to the level and in the manner and form prescribed by Financial

Administration Regulations 1986;

are based upon proper accounts; and

present fairly the transactions for the period under review.

Audit Opinion on Financial Statements of a Department or Statutory
Authority

For each department or statutory authority, the Auditor General prepares, signs

and transmits to the responsible Minister for tabling in Parliament (with copies

to the accountable officer or accountable authority, and the Treasurer in the

case of a department) an opinion as to whether:

the financial statements are based upon proper accounts and present fairly

the transactions for the period under review and the financial position at

the end of the period, in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards,

relevant Urgent Issues consensus views and Treasurer’s Instructions;

the controls exercised provide reasonable assurance that the receipt,

expenditure and investment of moneys and the acquisition and disposal of

public property or other property and incurring of liabilities have been in

accordance with the provisions of the Financial Administration and Audit

Act 1985 and other identified relevant written law.

Audit Opinion on Performance Indicators

The Treasurer’s Instructions require all public sector agencies to report key

indicators of efficiency and effectiveness for each of the government programs

that they undertake. These indicators are an essential component of the

accountability process, enabling people external to the agency to assess the extent

to which government programs have been achieved.

From 1995–96 the audit approach will be to issue formal audit opinions on key

program performance indicators. Where the agency has developed indicators

that are considered to be relevant to the objectives, appropriate for assisting

users external to the agency to assess performance and fairly represent the

indicated performance a clear opinion will be issued. Where the indicators have

not been sufficiently developed to conduct the audit required by the legislation,

the opinion will be qualified.
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In auditing performance indicators, the following are considered:

performance indicators are relevant to the agency’s stated objectives and

approved programs, and appropriate to the information needs of Parliament;

performance indicators provide a reliable measure of performance (that is,

they are based on proper records, systems and internal controls etc);

performance indicators are understandable to readers, in the context in

which they are presented; and

performance indicators are comparable over time, across similar activities,

and/or against targets or benchmarks.

Reasons for using particular indicators must be apparent, or otherwise the logic

of specific indicators needs to be specifically disclosed. Where an indicator

reported in the previous year is no longer reported, the reason for ceasing to

publish the indicators also needs to be disclosed.

Standards for Public Sector Audit Work

The work undertaken to form an opinion is permeated by judgement, in

particular regarding the nature, timing and extent of the audit procedures for

gathering of audit evidence and the drawing of conclusions based on the audit

evidence gathered. In addition, there are inherent limitations in any audit, and

these include the use of testing, the inherent limitations of any internal control

structure, the possibility of collusion and the fact that most audit evidence is

persuasive rather than conclusive. As a result, audits can only provide reasonable

- not absolute - assurance that financial reports are free of material misstatement.

Audit Approach

Financial statement audits performed by Office staff are conducted using an

internationally recognised audit approach, adapted to the government business

environment. The audits of Performance Indicators are conducted in terms of

an internally generated auditing standard.

The audit approach is assisted by specialist Electronic Data Processing staff who

provide expert support to audit staff and agencies through the performance of

computer related audit functions and the provision of advice on matters relating

to sound information systems control.
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Planning

Each audit is subjected to a rigorous planning process on an annual basis which

involves an assessment of risk and of sensitive and material issues drawing upon

the cumulative knowledge of the agency’s operations and systems gained from

previous audits and the results of revised assessments of these considerations.

Based on this process, individual strategies are developed for each audit.

Audit Testing

In forming an opinion on the financial statements and performance indicators,

sufficient tests are performed to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether:

the underlying accounting and other records are reliable and adequate as a

basis for the preparation of the financial report and performance indicators;

the results of the agency for the period and the state of affairs at the end of

the period are properly disclosed in the financial report; and

the performance indicators are relevant and appropriate and have been

prepared on a consistent basis.

Due to the intrinsic nature and limitations of audit techniques and testing

procedures, an audit is not specifically designed to detect fraud and other

irregularities and hence should not be relied upon to disclose such matters.

There is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatement, fraud or

irregularity may remain undiscovered.

Quality Control

The operational structure of Audit Groups within the Attest and Compliance

Business Unit is constructed in such a way so as to facilitate necessary industry

specialisation and quality control processes and reviews by senior management

prior to the conclusion and sign-off of each audit.

To complement this process, a system of internal and external peer reviews is

conducted as an added measure of ensuring quality in the delivery of audit

services.
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Work Performed by Other Auditors and Experts

The Auditor General performs his duties through officers and other persons

appointed under section 82 of the Act, who have similar professional obligations.

The audits of a number of agencies are performed by private sector audit

contractors on behalf of the Auditor General. On occasion it may also be

necessary or desirable, because of the highly specialised nature of certain

activities subject to audit, to engage other experts or other auditors to assist in

the conduct of audits.

Prior to forming an audit opinion, work performed by other auditors is reviewed

to ensure it provides reasonable assurance that such work is adequate, but

significant reliance is placed upon the judgement and expertise of the

professionals engaged.

Reliance on Internal Audit and Participation on Audit Committees

The degree of reliance placed on internal audit activities is determined by

assessment, including consideration of the level of independence, the

qualifications and status of officers, the relevance and appropriateness of

methodology, scope of audit and the extent of achievement when compared

with the internal audit program and management needs.

External audit attendance at audit committees and regular meetings between

the Office’s senior audit officers and the accountable officer or authority, and

their management team, improves the information flow, facilitates audit planning

and conduct, and supports the accountability and audit processes.

Management Representations

During an audit it may be necessary to rely on management’s written

representations where independent confirmation is not available, or where

management judgement is implicit in accountability assertions (with respect to

financial position or performance). The Auditor General’s power to require

acco u n table  o fficers a n d  a u th o rities, a n d  o th e r o fficers and persons, to furnish

information or provide explanations for the purposes of audit is currently defined

by section 85 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985. Management

representations are recognised as a form of audit evidence under Australian

Auditing Standard AUS 502 ‘Audit Evidence’ and AUS 520 ‘Management

Representations’.
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The consistency, credibility and reasonableness of these representations, and

disclosure of the bases of such judgements, are considered in forming conclusions

on the fairness of related management assertions in the financial statements or

elsewhere.

Principle of Materiality

In determining the extent of audit coverage the principle of materiality is applied.

Materiality refers to the concept of an amount or issue being of sufficient

magnitude, either in terms of size or sensitivity, as to be likely to influence the

judgement, and thereby the actions, of users of management assertions.

Application of the principle of materiality allows auditors to concentrate upon

matters of substance in their audits including but not limited to financial results,

program performance, risk assessment, systems, process, and controls.

Confidentiality

Section 91 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 and professional

ethics both require that confidentiality be preserved with respect to all matters

that come to the knowledge of the Auditor General, his staff and contract auditors

in the course of performing audit duties. Except as required to disclose audit

accountability through audit opinions and reports, or any proceedings of a

specified judicial nature under the Act or other law, the Auditor General, his

staff and contract auditors cannot communicate to any person such matters

that come to their attention. The responsibility for proper disclosure of all material

matters needed to discharge agency accountability rests with agency

management.

Opinion Timeframe and Reporting

The time period within which the Auditor General must issue an audit opinion

commences on receipt of the financial statements prescribed by the Act as

required.

The opinion on the Treasurer’s annual statements and the financial statements

of departments is to be, wherever practicable, issued within two months of

receiving the statements prepared in accordance with section 60(1) and (2), and

section 62(1)(a) and (b), respectively. The opinions on the financial statements of
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statutory authorities is to be, wherever practicable, issued within three months

of receiving the statements prepared in accordance with section 66(1)(a)

and (b).

Where the Auditor General is unable to issue audit opinions within statutory

deadlines, an interim report is provided to the Minister indicating that an opinion

has yet to be finished, and the Parliament informed by the agency.

To facilitate timely reporting, it is a stated objective of the Auditor General to

issue audit opinions on the financial statements and performance indicators of

agencies four to six weeks ahead of legislative requirements.

The Auditor General’s opinion is qualified where:

it is considered that the disclosure of all material matters needed to discharge

accountability does not meet prescribed legislative requirements or adopted

accounting standards;

there is a disagreement with management over elements of a financial report;

or

there is a limitation on the scope of an audit.

In addition to opinions on the financial report, the Office provides agency

management with a separate letter concerning any material weaknesses in

the internal control structures that come to notice.

Going Concern Assumption

In the preparation of financial statements, under existing accounting standards,

the continuance of an entity as a ‘going concern’ is assumed in the absence of

any statement to the contrary.

In many ways the private sector concepts of ‘going concern’ are inappropriate

to the public sector, particularly to organisations providing community

infrastructure or services on a non-commercial basis. Long term solvency or

the ability to meet long term obligations is difficult to assess for many public

sector bodies, particularly those which cannot be assumed to be ‘going concerns’

in a commercial sense. The determination of future liquidity and solvency in

public sector entities may be further complicated as access to resources may be

constrained by public policy, Cabinet or ministerial directive, at either State or

Commonwealth level.
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The identification and disclosure of aspects which may adversely impact on the

operations, liquidity, solvency or longer term viability of an accountable body,

which could place it in a position where it would no longer be able to adequately

perform its function, are responsibilities of the accountable officer or authority.

All aspects of this nature should be addressed in the annual report on operations

and, to the extent they are financial in nature, in the accounting policies

contained in the notes to the financial statements. In the absence of such

disclosure; clear policy statements that the public purse will not continue to

fund operations, that government guarantees will be withdrawn or that, in other

ways the Parliament or the Government will cease to support an accountable

body which continues to operate the Office must presume that such support

will be forthcoming and thus the ‘going concern’ assumption continues to apply.

Controls, Compliance and Accountability Examinations

The Office has recently revised its approach to attest and compliance auditing.

The main focus of the change is to categorise the attest and compliance tasks

into two discrete components:

financial statement and performance indicator audits; and

controls, compliance and accountability examinations (CCA).

These CCA examinations cover areas of financial control and public

administration that go beyond the work that would normally be performed to

support attest audit opinions. Examples of these examinations include:

reviews of the internal control structure;

detailed reviews of computer systems and controls;

public sector accountability and performance issues;

legislative and procedural compliance; and

issues of waste and extravagance.

The focus of these examinations will provide:

valuable agency specific issue reports to management and Parliament; and

a range of themes or issues common across various agencies.
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It is proposed that these examinations will increasingly encompass whole of

government considerations which will assist in providing relevant and

comprehensive information regarding the State’s financial management and

accountability.

Where concerns are common across several organisations, or otherwise matters

of significance, Control, Compliance and Accountability examinations are

reported, as appropriate, to agency management, the Treasurer, Ministers and

Parliament. This occurs through management or transmittal letters and special

or government-wide issues references in General Reports.

Responsibilities of Agencies

The responsibilities of agencies include:

Preparation of Financial and Other Reports

It is the responsibility of agency management to prepare financial reports and

reports of performance indicators including adequate disclosure. This includes

the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal control structures,

the selection and application of accounting policies, the safeguarding of assets,

and the determination of appropriate objectives and supporting performance

indicators of the agency.

In exercising financial responsibility, the Auditor General considers that agency

management has primary responsibility in the following areas:

maintain sufficient, appropriate supporting information (‘proper accounts

and records’) and an up-to-date accounting manual;

implement appropriate financial management and accounting information

systems;

retain and develop competent financial, accounting and other personnel;

assure effective risk management, internal control and quality control; and

select a consistent basis of reporting and implement relevant accounting

policies.
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Management judgement is inherent in policies and strategies for many areas of

financial management and reporting, including:

valuation of inventories;

investment of funds;

valuation and depreciation of non-current assets;

debt management and financial leveraging;

determination of employee entitlements;

foreign exchange management and hedging; and

risk management, control and insurance.

Performance and Controls

The responsibility for economic, efficient and effective operation of an

organisation including early detection of fraud rests with management. In order

to meet this obligation, management must understand the organisation’s strategic

operating environment, its risk profile and ensure that appropriate effective

controls to regulate and monitor activities are incorporated into the overall

operations.

The systems, controls and accounts supporting the financial statements and other

client/management assertions should be designed with due consideration to

the ease of review. The auditability of these aspects is facilitated by proper

documentation of policy decisions, preparation and retention of supporting

working papers and maintenance of an adequate audit trail.

Information

To conduct an efficient and effective audit, full and free access to all relevant

information is required. Such information includes ministerial policy

pronouncements and Cabinet directives which affect each accountable body

plus board and executive minutes. Furthermore, such information, and any

amendments thereto during the period, should be in a readily accessible form.
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Internal Audit

Accountable officers and authorities are required to develop and maintain

effective internal audit functions.

Internal audit forms a key part of management’s internal control framework.

The presence of an effective, comprehensive internal audit function will expedite

the conduct of the external audit and issue of audit opinions, and facilitate the

economical use of resources.

Quality Control

A major enhancement to the timely preparation and transmission of audit

opinions to Ministers and Reports to Parliament is the application of quality

control procedures over the preparation of financial statements and performance

indicators submitted for audit.
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GOVERNMENT–WIDE ISSUESGOVERNMENT–WIDE ISSUES

Matters addressed in this section relate to findings that generally have an impact

on the whole, or a substantial part of, the public sector. The findings primarily

represent observations arising from statutory audits and performance

examinations of a number of agencies.

Notwithstanding the matters reported in this section for a particular agency,

further matters relating to that agency may also be reported under the relevant

section in the Ministerial Portfolio section of this Report.

This section also includes a follow up of certain Government-wide issues

previously reported.
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PUBLIC SECTOR INFORMATION SYSTEMSPUBLIC SECTOR INFORMATION SYSTEMS

Disaster Recovery of Computer Systems

Key Finding

Some agencies which have converted to midrange computing

technology need to increase their capability to recover from computing

disasters or major system failures.

Background

The conversion of information systems from mainframe to midrange

(minicomputer) systems continues to be a major trend within the public sector,

as agencies which previously used centralised mainframe based financial and

human resource systems implement their own midrange systems. The initial

investment by each agency in these systems ranges from approximately

$100 000 to $600 000 per system. Other important systems which are critical to

agencies’ business are also being converted to this new technology. In view of

the significant investment in these systems and their importance to agencies’

service delivery, it is prudent to arrange for alternate (backup) computer systems

which can be used in the event of a disaster, such as a fire or water damage, or

major component failure befalling an agency’s computer facilities.

The conversion to midrange computing affects agencies’ ability to recover from

computing failures/disasters in several ways, including:

Agencies are now required to arrange and fund their own backup computer

facilities, whereas in many cases this was previously provided by a bureau.

There is unrealised potential to arrange common backup facilities to service

agencies with similar hardware and system software, at lower cost than

mainframe backup sites.

This could take the form of reciprocal agreements between agencies or

be achieved by groups of agencies negotiating collectively with a vendor.

Conversely, some systems may be unique and require specialised backup

hardware/software.



21

Disaster Recovery of Computer Systems

In some cases, as a partial solution, an agency can use one of its existing

computers as a backup for other computers, this measure being effective in

the event of hardware failure but ineffective in the event of a disaster, such

as a fire which destroys both computers.

In the event of a disaster affecting less critical systems, agencies can

potentially plan to order a replacement from a supplier, notwithstanding

the associated lead times.

Essential periodic testing, by each agency, of its disaster recovery

arrangements is likely to represent a more significant expense to the agency

compared to testing which was previously performed by a bureau.

Scope of Audit

Audits of midrange computers (minicomputers) and devolution of government

systems has identified as a significant issue the changing needs of agencies in

respect of disaster recovery of computing facilities. As some agencies had

inadequate alternate computer systems as backup for their new midrange

systems, a sample of ten representative agencies was selected and their hardware/

software backup arrangements assessed. The primary objective of this assessment

was to establish whether agencies had adequate backup computer facilities to

be used in the event of a disaster, such as fire or water damage, or major

component failure befalling their ‘live’ computer facilities.

Findings

Of 11 systems sampled at ten agencies:

Three had adequate backup computer facilities for use in the event that

their primary computers are unavailable due to a disaster, such as a fire or

water damage, or due to component failure.

One had previously had adequate backup computer facilities but at the

time of audit, the backup computer was being used for other critical purposes

and was unavailable.

Three planned to purchase a replacement system in the event of a disaster,

an approach which could involve significant delays.

One is relying on its supplier, under a maintenance agreement, to provide a

replacement system. This plan relates only to system failure and does not

cover a disaster situation.
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One plans to use another of its computers to temporarily replace the

computer which fails. This plan would be unworkable in the event of a fire

destroying both computers, which are in the same building.

One agency had installed separate copies of the same payroll system at

several branches. Of two branches reviewed, one had not arranged or tested

a backup capability (primarily for reasons of cost) whereas another had

incurred significant costs of $28 000 (one-off) and $18 000 per annum in

implementing a backup facility.

Although some of the above arrangements may be appropriate for the associated

risk, others represent an undue exposure. It is considered that more effective

risk management requires improved coordination and sharing of facilities

between agencies.

Recommendation

Agencies coordinate their disaster recovery backup sites, thereby

facilitating continuity of business operations and minimising the risk

and overall cost to agencies and the government.
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Management of Government Social Concessions

Key Finding

Concerns raised in 1992 about the lack of a coordinated whole of

government approach to targeting, monitoring and evaluating

concessions are now being addressed by:

development of a government wide concessions database; and

Treasury commitment to a whole of government review of

concessions.

Background

Concessions on government goods and services are the major form of social

assistance provided by the State government. A recent survey by the Office of

Seniors’ Interests (OSI) identified 44 agencies providing social concessions worth

around $250 million annually.

The concessions, received as a discount or rebate, are mainly directed at essential

goods and services such as power, water, transport, education, housing and

health. A smaller number of minor value concessions are also directed at

improving quality of lifestyle.

The major recipients of the concessions are holders of Pensioner Health Benefit

cards, Health Care and Health Benefits cards, Seniors cards, War Widows and

Totally and Permanently Incapacitated Pensioners.

In December 1992, a report was presented to Parliament on the ‘Management of

Government Social Concessions’. That report described how Government

agencies were delivering concessions in isolation rather than in a coordinated

whole of government approach. There was also a lack of clear accountability

and little monitoring and evaluation of the efficiency or effectiveness of the

concessions in achieving the desired outcomes. The report concluded that these

weaknesses reduced the likelihood that concessions would achieve the desired

social objectives within the context of the available resources.
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To address these findings a number of recommendations were made to

Government and the agencies concerned. These included:

the Government should clarify agency responsibility for managing the

effective delivery of concessions;

agencies should provide Government with the information needed to assess

the effectiveness of its concession strategy;

agency information on concessions should be maintained in a format that

enables comparative analysis across government; and

the need for a whole of government review of the equity, targeting and cost

effectiveness of concessions.

A follow up examination was conducted in 1995 to review progress since tabling

the 1992 report.

Objectives and Scope

The objective of the follow up examination was to assess whether there has

been any improvement in the management of State Government social

concessions. To this end the examination looked at accountability for the

effectiveness of concessions and the monitoring and evaluation of concessions

at the agency and whole of government level.

Information was gathered by interview and document analysis at the same nine

agencies previously examined. Discussions were also held with the Public Sector

Management Office.

Findings

Recent action taken by Government and agencies, particularly since the

commencement of the follow up examination, should enable a coordinated

whole of government approach to concessions.

In late 1994, the Minister for Seniors’ Interests and Community Development

directed the OSI to conduct an ‘audit of State Government Concessions’. A

resulting survey of agencies found significant gaps in the information that many

agencies could provide such as the number of recipients, the value of the

concessions, demographic features of the recipients and administration costs.
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In its report to the Minister, the OSI report stated “lack of information about

individual concessions and the failure of organisations to record data in a

standardised manner made it impossible to undertake a complete examination

of concessions. .... If information about concessions is to be any use in long

term planning and provide effective indicators to measure outcomes, the

maintenance of an accurate and standardised database on concessions would

seem essential.”

The Treasury supported this conclusion. In advice to the Auditor General the

Under Treasurer stated that “there is a need for a central database relating to all

social concessions provided by government” and that Treasury “is probably the

most suitable of the central agencies to maintain this information”.

The Under Treasurer also advised that he accepted that a review of the

effectiveness of concessions “is now warranted and .... Treasury will hold

discussions with the Public Sector Management Office and various other agencies

to determine a format of the review”.

In a major step towards implementing the 1992 recommendations the Premier

issued a Circular to Ministers in January 1996 (Number 2/96) advising agencies

that a concessions database was to be developed to enable a whole of government

approach to the management of all state government concessions. The necessary

data will be collected from agencies and will be maintained by the Treasury.

Treasury have advised that once compiled, the database will form the basis of a

review of the effectiveness of state government concessions.
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Key Finding

Some public sector agencies have made significant changes to their

management principles and practices in respect of grants to non-

government organisations.  The opportunity now exists for other

agencies to ensure that they have appropriate grant management

principles and practices in place.  To facilitate this process it is timely

for a central government agency to implement strategies to further the

adoption of these principles and practices more generally and to provide

assurance to Government and the community that accountability for

grants is maintained.

Background

Non-government organisations (NGOs) are not-for-profit organisations that are

generally concerned with the provision of services to the community. NGOs are

independent of government and are not part of the public sector.

Financial assistance to NGOs has tended to increase over time as both the number

of NGOs and the scope of their services have increased. State government

funding of NGOs makes up a significant proportion of total government

expenditure (over $320 million in 1994). There is an expectation by the taxpayer

and the Parliament that these funds are subject to the same types of controls

and safeguards that apply to other categories of public expenditure.

In May 1994 a report was tabled in Parliament on ‘Grants to Non-Government

Organisations’. This report was based upon a review of relevant documents and

a survey of 15 public sector agencies that provided the majority (approximately

75 per cent) of government funding to NGOs. The examination concluded that:

at least half of the major funding government agencies surveyed indicated

that they had not implemented all of the policies and procedures referred

to in the circular to Ministers during 1992–93 as requested;

significant grants were still being made to NGOs in the absence of formal

agreements detailing the purposes of the grants, the responsibilities and

obligations of both parties, and the level of performance and expected

outcomes to be achieved by the NGOs; and
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expenditure of some grants by NGOs were not being adequately monitored

and evaluated by government agencies to ascertain that the funds were

properly spent and that the expected performance and outcomes were

achieved. As a result many government agencies, and the Government,

lacked the information necessary to determine whether public funds granted

to NGOs were being efficiently utilised in the pursuit of government agencies’

program objectives.

The examination went on to recommend that:

all government agencies which fund NGOs should take immediate concerted

action to ensure that they have appropriate grants management principles

and practices in place for all grants; and

a designated government agency should be given responsibility for

facilitating and coordinating the adoption of appropriate grants management

principles and practices by government agencies.

Objectives and Scope

A follow up examination was undertaken during late 1995 and early 1996 to

identify actions taken since the tabling of the May 1994 report. This follow up

was based upon the analysis of documents, and interviews with a small sample

of key agencies.

Findings

The follow up found that the Western Australian public sector’s approach to the

management of grants to NGOs has continued to change and evolve. Recent

years have seen an increasing emphasis being given to greater accountability

for expenditure, having contractual agreements with NGOs, clarifying funder/

fundee relationships, and increased attention to service quality.
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Department for Family and Children’s Services

In 1984 the State Government spent about $2.9 million on funding

agencies to deliver services to families, children and individuals. In 1995

this figure was almost $40 million. Traditionally, community services

funding has been provided to NGOs in the form of block grants to each

agency. Little forward planning was evident, and there were major

funding inconsistencies and anomalies. Poor monitoring and

accountability practices also meant that agencies could continue to

receive funds despite changes in their circumstances or structures. The

situation was made even more ambiguous by the lack of current funding

agreements with clear statements of what was required of the funding

agency.

The Department has now moved to a new model described as ‘funding

of services’. First a comprehensive study was undertaken to identify the

various services that were offered throughout the community. Secondly,

Departmental staff worked with local groups and organisations to identify

local services, community needs and priorities. Under this new model,

the Department now enters into legally binding Service Agreements with

non- government agencies. These agreements emphasise clearly specified

service objectives, the desired target groups and the required outputs

and outcomes. It is intended that this new approach will promote

improved planning; improved customer access; greater accountability;

and clearer expectations for NGOs, government and consumers.

These changes are consistent with overseas trends, where the management of

grants to NGOs has developed from early philanthropic approaches; on to ‘needs-

based submissions for funding’ models; and currently contracting for services

through competitive tendering is becoming more widespread. Some countries,

such as Canada, are now moving towards a model for grants to NGOs based

upon forming ‘strategic partnerships’ between the government and non-

government sectors.
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Lotteries Commission

In 1995 the Commission returned over $100 million to the Western

Australian community, through statutory commitments to Hospitals, the

Arts and Sports and through the discretionary grants program for which

the Commission has direct responsibility. The discretionary grants

program made grants to 1 459 different community organisations. The

Commission distributes its grant funds through a range of different

methods. Approximately three years ago the Commission started moving

from primarily submission based funding to formal program budgets,

advertised funding rounds and specific guide lines associated with each

of the programs.

Accountability for Commission grant funding occurs at two levels. Firstly,

accountability for the efficient and effective usage of goods purchased

with grant funds is seen as an integral part of the initial assessment

process, with good management practices in the organisation seen as

an important assessment criterion. Secondly, the Commission accounts

for its stewardship of discretionary grant funds at the program level

through publicity of its activities, holding public meetings, annual

performance reporting and the commissioning of independent

evaluations to assess the social and economic impacts of its grants

programs. A legislative review of the Lotteries Commission Act of 1990

will be undertaken in 1997 and this will provide the Commission a further

opportunity to review the broad Community Funding function.

The Public Service Commission’s 1992 report on grants to NGOs, ‘Helping the

Community to Help Itself, The Review of Non-Government Organisation

Funding’, provided the basis for subsequent government policy as expressed in

the Circular To Ministers No 19/92. It appears that this policy has been

implemented in an inconsistent manner at both central government and

individual agency levels. Agencies such as the Department for Family and

Children’s Services, Lotteries Commission, and the Disability Services

Commission are noteworthy for their initiatives to improve their management

of grants to NGOs.
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In an environment of continued devolution of responsibilities to individual

Ministers and departments, central agencies have a limited high level overseeing

role to ensure that government is not exposed to undue risks and to ensure that

the intended benefits arising from central government guidelines are in fact

being realised.

Responsibility for the central monitoring of grants to NGOs has now been more

clearly identified with Treasury. Treasury anticipates that they will be shortly

commencing the process of developing a whole of government database of grants

to NGOs. This will provide the opportunity to better monitor the distribution of

grants and coordinate the implementation of appropriate grants management

principles and practices by all agencies.

In recent years the Western Australian public sector has seen a number of changes

relevant to the management of grants to NGOs, for example, the abolition of

the Public Service Commission, increasing emphasis on competitive tendering

and contracting out with a changing role for government, the introduction of a

national competition policy and the release of the Industry Commission’s 1995

report ‘Charitable Organisations in Australia’.  Given these developments it is

now timely for a reappraisal of the Public Service Commission’s 1992

recommendations to assess their continued appropriateness, and for a central

government agency to implement strategies to further the adoption of

appropriate grants management principles and practices by government

agencies.  This, in conjunction with the enhanced monitoring of grants, would

provide assurance to Government and the community that accountability for

grants to NGOs is maintained.
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Audit issues which warrant reporting separately, due to their complexity,

importance or impact on agency operation and performance, are included in

this section.

Notwithstanding, the matters reported in this section for a particular agency,

further matters relating to that agency may also be reported under the relevant

section in the Ministerial Portfolio section of this Report.
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Key Findings

Deficiencies in project management and systems development

methodology have resulted in higher costs and delays in implementing

a new computer system when compared with original estimates which

the Board has acknowledged were unrealistic.

Deficiencies in controls over the initial take-up of employee data raises

concerns as to the completeness and accuracy of the data.

Background

As a consequence of the Commonwealth Superannuation Guarantee

(Administration) Act 1992  which requires employers to provide superannuation

support for their employees from July 1, 1992, the Government Employees

Superannuation Board (the Board) has established a non contributory scheme

known as the ‘Weststate Superannuation Scheme’ (the Scheme) to cater for all

government employees not covered by other employer-sponsored

superannuation schemes. Legislation to establish the scheme from July 1, 1992

was passed by the Parliament in September 1993. Contributions are made by

employers based on a percentage (currently six per cent) of employees’ salaries

or wages, and benefits paid are made up of accumulated contributions and

interest.

The Board commenced development of a new financial management system in

May 1993 to facilitate the management of the Scheme. This audit was directed

at reviewing the development process and the take-up of employee data.
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Findings

Systems Development

Work commenced on the project in-house in May 1993. It was initially anticipated

by the Board that the system would be completed and operational by July 1994

at an estimated cost of $598 000. However, due to complexities associated with

the legislation, difficulties were experienced in developing the detailed

specifications for the proposed system.

By December 1993 the Board determined that initial project goals would not be

met, that project resource requirements had been underestimated, and that the

Board did not have the in-house resources to complete the project. Consequently

it was decided to utilise external resources.

Design and coding of a significant part of the system was outsourced and

undertaken between March and November 1994. However, there was a delay in

implementing the results of this work and subsequent changes in system

specifications meant some of this work had to be modified at additional cost.

In August 1994 a consultant project manager was appointed because the project

was not making satisfactory progress. A comprehensive project plan establishing

time and cost estimates was prepared. This plan was reviewed by an external

consultant in December 1994 who reported that the project targets were

achievable. The project has progressed steadily but with some slippage of

estimated implementation dates. Some of this has been due to necessary scope

variations resulting from changes in statutory requirements. Current projections

are that the system will be fully operational by July 1996, at a cost of approximately

$3 million.

It is acknowledged that the design and development of a system to retrospectively

collect data from employers from July 1992 was a difficult and complex task.

The Board was required to enrol a large number of new members, set up systems

to retrospectively collect data, transfer members from the previous non

contributory scheme, and pay out benefits under the new scheme during the

period that the system was being developed. The retrospective nature of the

project resulted in the need to develop transitional arrangements which were

far more time consuming and costly than were estimated originally. The Board’s

problems were compounded by the failure of some agencies to promptly provide

data in the required format.
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Take-up of Data

Data has been entered progressively to the system as stages of development

have been completed. Government agencies initially provided employee data

in six-monthly tranches for the period July 1, 1992 to June 30, 1994 and this data

was progressively input into the system. Employee data for the period July 1,

1994 to June 30, 1995 had not been input to the system as at the time of the

audit.

In respect to the data take-up for 1992–93 and 1993–94 there were deficiencies

in controls to ensure the completeness and accuracy of the data input to the

system. The take-up process did not include the production of sufficient control

reports and reconciliations to ensure that all eligible records that were provided

by agencies were completely and accurately input into the database. Information

taken up into the database was not returned to agencies for verification of its

completeness and accuracy.

Recommendations

Agencies should ensure that adequate project management processes

and appropriate systems development methodologies are used to ensure

that project time and cost estimates are properly established and

monitored and that project outcomes are achieved.

The Board should provide database details to agencies and request that

the details be verified by the agencies to ensure that the database

contains correct information.

The Board should ensure the completeness and accuracy of future data

take-ups.
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Introduction

The public health sector has been subject to extensive management reform in

recent years with the objective of delivering more efficient and effective health

services in an accountable manner. The key underlying principles of these

reforms include devolved management; greater accountability; a focus on quality

of service; and becoming competitive with the private providers of health

services.

These reforms have impacted on many health sector agencies and have given

rise to a number of controls and compliance issues, some of which were

specifically examined during the 1994–95 audit period.

These issues are reported separately due to their complexity or impact on hospital

operations. The object of these reports is to identify opportunities for

improvement in the financial management and program delivery of hospitals.

The result of the reviews of the following areas is reported hereunder:

Accounting Expertise at Non Teaching Hospitals;

Purchasing of Goods and Services at Non Teaching Hospitals;

Human Resources Information Systems at Non Teaching Hospitals; and

Internal Audit.
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Key Findings

Financial statements submitted for audit by non teaching hospitals

required numerous amendments.

The generally poor quality of these financial statements can be directly

attributed to a lack of appropriately skilled accounting staff as well as

ineffective quality review procedures.

Background

Current legislation requires each of the 105 non teaching hospitals to prepare

financial statements on an accrual basis at June 30 each year.

Recent Health Sector reforms resulted in significant functional responsibility

being devolved to the General Manager, a position introduced in 1994. All General

Managers are now required to operate each hospital within their Health Service

as separate business units and must ensure that accurate and timely financial

information is available to effectively fulfil their responsibilities.

Previous General Reports to Parliament have raised concerns regarding the

quality of financial information submitted for audit by non teaching hospitals.

Many General Managers in country regions have indicated that they have

experienced difficulty in recruiting appropriately skilled accounting staff, or

where staff with such skills have been employed, the hospital has difficulty

retaining them for an extended period.

This examination did not include the teaching hospitals and Perth Dental Hospital.

Findings

Most non teaching hospitals’ 1994–95 financial statements submitted for audit

required amendments resulting from audit examinations. Examples of difficulties

reported include 85 instances of poor quality financial statements, 62 instances

of non compliance with accounting standards, 27 instances of problems

maintaining asset registers and six instances of the use of inappropriate

depreciation rates.
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The number of amendments required highlights a need for General Managers at

non teaching hospitals to assess the current levels of accounting skills and

determine what skills are required to effectively maintain the accounting function

including that of reporting. General Managers have an obligation to ensure

accurate financial information is prepared and that adequate and reliable quality

control exists over the preparation and checking of financial statements.

Findings from a recent Office survey indicated that nearly 85 per cent of the

General Managers identified the lack of appropriately skilled staff and the inability

to retain appropriately skilled staff as the primary reasons for the poor quality of

financial statements being submitted for audit.

General Managers indicated that, in many instances, the small size of their

operations and limited resourcing made it difficult to implement any quality

assurance procedures when preparing financial information.

The Health Department has acknowledged that a significant problem does exist

at many of the non teaching hospital sites throughout the State and they are

endeavouring to implement a training program aimed at increasing the

accounting and finance skills in the regions.

Recommendations

Quality assurance procedures be developed and implemented to ensure

that financial statements prepared meet the fundamental accountability

obligations of producing accurate and reliable accrual based financial

statements in a timely manner;

Relevant training courses already developed by the Health Department

to continue and be supported by General Managers to facilitate

improved levels of accounting expertise in hospitals; and

Where a hospital is unable to attract appropriately skilled staff, the

General Manager should consider alternative options such as

centralisation of the accounting function or outsourcing the hospitals

accounting functions to an appropriately qualified person in the local

community.
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Hospitals

Key Findings

Although most personnel involved in the purchase of goods and services

demonstrated a reasonable awareness of guidelines issued by the State

Supply Commission and Government Health Supply Council, some

problems relating to their application were noted including:

The purchasing policy and procedures manuals governing the

procurement of goods and services were generally not well

maintained.

Controls needed to ensure goods and services purchased were

appropriately authorised were poor.

Inconsistent interpretation and application of purchasing policies

and procedures resulting in purchases being made outside

authorised limits.

Background

The Government Health Supply Council issued supply instructions in February

1995 which provide the financial thresholds and approval processes applicable

for the purchase of goods and services and the disposal of property in the Western

Australian public health sector. These instructions reflect the relevant

requirements of the State Supply Commission’s supply policy that impact on all

health units, services and hospitals and include reference to partial exemption

arrangements with the Commission. The partial exemption, afforded to the

Minister for Health pursuant to section 19(1) of the State Supply Commission

Act 1991 which is effective from January 1, 1995, enables the Minister or his duly

authorised delegates to call and evaluate tenders as well as award and administer

health specific contracts within the public tender threshold.

Purchasing is effective when goods and services are acquired at a competitive

price and delivered to the correct place in a timely manner and planned

outcomes are achieved. To this end, compliance with the State Supply
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Commission’s policies and the Government Health Supply Council’s instructions

should ensure that probity, equity and cost-effectiveness are maintained at the

highest level in the procurement of goods and services.

In order to assess the level of accountability for the purchasing function, 12 non

teaching hospitals with responsibility for purchasing goods and services were

reviewed to ensure:

adequate controls existed over the purchasing of goods and services; and

hospitals complied with the State Supply Commission’s purchasing policies

and procedures and with the Government Health Supply Council’s

instructions.

Findings

Purchasing Manuals

A number of hospitals did not maintain up to date manuals of current purchasing

policies and procedures detailing appropriate purchasing practices when

procuring goods and services. The review also highlighted instances where policy

manuals were not readily available and documentation or reference to current

purchasing policies and procedures did not exist.

Interpretation of Purchasing Guidelines

A review of information gathered during the conduct of this examination

highlighted instances of inconsistent interpretation and application of the

purchasing guidelines specified by the State Supply Commission and the

Government Health Supply Council.

These inconsistencies included:

nil or partial compliance with the requirement to obtain three written

quotations for the procurement of goods and services valued from $5 000

to $49 999;

documentary evidence of quotes obtained not being retained; and

prior approval from the Health Supply Contracts Committee for purchases

greater than $20 000 not obtained.

These weaknesses were contributed to by management at hospitals not always

updating purchasing instructions and making these available to all relevant staff.
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Other Weaknesses

Other areas where poor controls existed over purchasing included:

no formal appointment of Purchasing Officer;

lack of records detailing who the authorised purchasing officers are and the

approved monetary limits for various purchases; and

no records maintained per Treasurer’s Instructions 304 and 305 detailing

the certifying and incurring officers appointed.

Recommendations

Relevant and up to date policies and procedures relating to the

procurement of goods and services be adequately documented and

referenced and made known and readily available to appropriate staff.

Mechanisms to ensure compliance with the State Supply Commission’s

policies and the Government Health Supply Council’s instructions be

established.

A current register of authorised purchasing officers and their approved

purchasing limits be maintained.

A current register of certifying and incurring officers be maintained.
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Teaching Hospital

Key Findings

Responsibility for the operation of personnel and payroll systems has

been devolved to a number of non teaching hospital sites and has

resulted in potential internal control weaknesses relating to security

controls where these responsibilities were not adequately resourced.

Non teaching hospitals back up and recovery procedures are not being

properly documented.

Background

During 1994–95 the Health Department of Western Australia continued to

implement a new computerised personnel and payroll system known as the

Human Resource Information System (HRIS) across the health sector including

both teaching and non teaching hospital sites. To assist the implementation of

this system across the health sector a HRIS Statewide Implementation Group

has been formed. When fully implemented throughout the health sector, the

system will process the salaries and wages of approximately 24 000 staff totalling

about $874 million in 1994–95. The new system operates on mini-computers

located at the Health Department and at major hospitals around the State.

Regional non teaching hospitals where HRIS has been implemented are to

provide a bureau service to many of the smaller hospitals. The implementation

of HRIS replaces several personnel and payroll systems that have operated on a

central mainframe computer that serviced the whole State.

This review examined the implementation process and the financial and

management controls within the HRIS system at the Kalgoorlie Regional Hospital,

Bunbury Regional Hospital and Royal Street (Metropolitan Non Teaching

Hospitals) sites.

A similar review of the implementation of HRIS at teaching hospitals was

conducted in 1995 and reported in the Auditor General’s Second General Report

to Parliament in 1995.



42

Human Resources Information Systems at Non Teaching Hospital

Findings

The review identified a lack of manual controls associated with the

implementation of the new system. In addition, controls previously exercised at

the central site over the physical security of the computer equipment, security

of computer programs and data, backing up and recovery of computer files and

completeness and accuracy of data converted from the old computer systems

and manual records have not been adequately assigned to the new units.

Other common problems identified from the review, which have the potential

to result in salary overpayments and processing delays at various sites, include:

The HRIS Statewide Implementation Group and hospital sites have not

established ownership of the systems. Lack of clarity between the HRIS data

owners (hospitals) and the HRIS Statewide Implementation Group exists

regarding:

who is responsible for system changes;

authorisation of access;

accountability for transactions processed on the various databases; and

whether system expertise should reside centrally or on site.

There were concerns relating to systems security and stability. Responsibility

for controlling access to the operating system has yet to be assumed by

management at hospital sites. Users at these sites have been disadvantaged

because system and control documentation has not been finalised.

HRIS sites lacked appropriately skilled staff to handle the take-up and

verification of HRIS related application changes entered into the new system.

The Statewide Implementation Group still had access to the system at various

sites to make changes to the system. This access should now be transferred

to authorised users at the sites at which HRIS has been established.

Policies and procedures over security of computer files and access to the

computer system were lacking.

Security control weaknesses existed relating to system access, user

authorisation procedures and program and data access.

Recovery testing was not being carried out.

Off-site backup measures at some sites were inadequate.
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Recommendation

Each processing site should ensure that:

Appropriately documented policies and procedures are in place;

Adequately trained and experienced staff are available to operate

the devolved systems;

A thorough review of user access takes place; and

Development of secure off-site backup facilities takes place and

recovery testing is initiated.
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Key Finding

An effective internal audit function was not maintained by the Health

Department of Western Australia (HDWA) or the respective Health

Services Provider Units (excluding Teaching Hospitals) during 1994–95

as required by section 53 of the Financial Administration and Audit Act

1985.

Background

The State Public Health Sector adopted a new structure based on the Funder/

Owner/Purchaser/Provider (FOPP) model effective from July 1, 1994. This model

is resource allocation based and designed to allocate resources with greater equity

and to enable communities to be more involved in the decision making process.

With the introduction of this model in the Public Health Sector, regional health

services were created within which Health Service Provider Units have

responsibility for ensuring an effective internal audit function exists. The Health

Department’s Internal Audit Branch undertook to provide this function for the

1994–95 financial period to the majority of the Health Service Provider Units

throughout the State.

This review examined the effectiveness of the internal audit function, however

it did not include teaching hospitals as they maintain their own internal audit

functions.

Findings

This review noted a number of shortcomings in the health sector’s internal audit

arrangements including:

A minimal number of relevant accounting systems and transactions at the

various Health Services Units were examined by internal audit during the

1994–95 financial year. The approved strategic audit plan for internal audit

provided for a more comprehensive audit coverage. Lack of available staff

and a commitment to implementing strategic audit plans at various health

services throughout the State contributed to the reduced audit coverage;
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The Health Department’s Internal Audit branch did not provide an

appropriate level of audit coverage for Departmental funded Health Service

Provider Units such as Mental Health, Community Health and Continuing

Care Services;

A review of internal audit working papers indicated that audit conclusions

were not supported by sufficient appropriate audit evidence;

Recommendations made by internal audit were not followed up promptly;

and

No Internal Audit committee existed to monitor performance against the

established strategic Audit Plan.

As a result of these shortcomings, it was not possible to place any reliance on

the audit work conducted by internal audit.

The Health Department has advised that the operational and EDP audit sections

of its internal audit function are to be outsourced as part of a restructure within

the Health Department. This is planned to commence from July 1, 1996. A small

internal audit unit will be maintained to manage all internal audit contracts as

well as provide a quality assurance function. It is also proposed that an Audit

Committee will be created to coordinate and monitor the Health Sector’s internal

audit function.

Recommendations

The Accountable Officer/Authority ensure that:

The internal audit strategic plan be reviewed and approved annually

by management;

Internal audit’s strategic plan considers the needs of both the health

services and departmental provider units;

An Audit Committee be established to assist in developing and

monitoring the strategic audit plans within the public health sector;

There are mechanisms in place for all recommendations made by

internal audit to be followed up promptly; and

The schedule of internal audit work completed is monitored against

the strategic audit plan.
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The Accountable Officer/Authority should ensure that the General

Manager of the regional health service actively participates in the

internal audit planning process to ensure appropriate and adequate

audit coverage is provided based on a reasonable assessment of financial

and operational risk at that regional health service.

Appropriate audit evidence supporting all audit conclusions to be

documented in sufficient detail to enable an independent reviewer to

assess the relevance and appropriateness of the findings.
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The Management of Properties acquired for Main Roads

Key Finding

The Commissioner of Main Roads has further improved the management

of properties acquired for road works and has addressed all issues raised

in 1993.

Background

The primary function of the Commissioner of Main Roads (Main Roads) is to

plan and construct roads. However, in order to do this certain properties which

are affected by proposed road works may be purchased by Main Roads prior to

any road works commencing. Over the years, therefore, Main Roads has

accumulated a significant portfolio of real property. These properties include

residential and commercial properties as well as vacant land. At June 30, 1995

the total value of these properties was over $100 million.

These property holdings arise because properties need to be acquired some time

before they are required for road works (a lead time of two years is normal) or

because in hardship cases Main Roads makes earlier purchase. Priorities may

also change, which may delay road projects proceeding. In the meantime

properties which are not required for road works in the short term are rented

out, generating a return on these assets. Main Roads has estimated that properties

to the value of $56 million were suitable for rental in 1994–95 and these properties

generated rental revenue totalling $2.2 million.

A performance examination conducted in 1993 found that overall these

properties were being well managed. Properties were found to have been

acquired and disposed of in accordance with Main Roads’ legislative mandate.

Overall the properties were being managed in a reasonable manner and

appropriate policies and procedures had been implemented to manage them.

Nevertheless a number of areas where property management procedures and

practices could be improved were identified.
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Objectives and Scope

A follow up examination was commenced in July 1995 focusing on initiatives
taken since the earlier review with regard to suggested improvements in the

acquisition of properties, management of properties and property information
systems maintained.

In the latter part of 1995, Main Roads sought to contract out components of its
property management services to the private sector. Main Roads will retain
responsibility for its property management function irrespective of whether

specific services are delivered by in-house staff or private sector contractors.
The contracting out of these services was not reviewed in this follow up

examination.

Findings

Main Roads has addressed all issues raised in the 1993 performance examination
report and has made improvements consistent with the recommendations. In
particular:

Main Roads is seeking to reduce holding times by generally not purchasing

properties until a road project has been announced (a lead time of two
years is required). Only in exceptional circumstances are properties
purchased well in advance of when required. For example to alleviate

genuine hardship for the existing property owner when the owner is having
difficulty selling the property on the open market as it has been reserved
for future road works;

Main Roads has consolidated its property information (which was previously
spread across several registers and databases) on its Land and Property
Register thereby reducing duplication of property information;

Reconciliations have been undertaken between registers and are continuing
on a regular basis to agree and confirm the reliability of data contained
therein;

Property management information and costs (such as settlement costs and
times, maintenance costs) are now monitored on a regular basis to make
the most effective use of resources and to assist in making informed decisions

regarding those properties; and

Controls have been introduced to ensure that key property management
procedures are being followed and relevant data is being maintained. This

includes redesigning tenancy application forms, improved file management
systems, and improved monthly financial reporting.
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Key Findings

The Education Department of Western Australia has made significant

progress towards improving the planning for and management of school

facilities. Some under utilised schools have already been closed or

amalgamated . It is too early, however, to determine the extent to which

the policies and strategies developed are resulting in real cost

efficiencies.

There has been an improvement in community access to school facilities,

and some real cost benefits have been achieved through capital resource

sharing.

Background

In March 1994, a report was presented to Parliament on the Utilisation of School

Facilities in the Metropolitan Area, showing that in many metropolitan primary

and secondary schools, effective use was not being made of some school facilities

either by the schools themselves or by the local community.

Schools represent more than an educational asset as their facilities can be used

to meet broader community needs. The report showed that much potential for

use of classrooms, libraries and sporting facilities by the community was not

being realised.

Planning and management of school facilities were also identified as areas in

need of improvement. Information required for effective decision making was

often unavailable. Strategies were not in place to enable management to vary

accommodation in response to changes in student numbers.

Key recommendations included that the Education Department of Western

Australia (the Department) should :

Consider making greater use of relocatable classrooms, manage the impact

of non-government schools and that the Schools Rationalisation Review be

ongoing;
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Continue developing, implementing and monitoring strategies to improve

community use of existing and planned school facilities; and

Consider opportunities for greater government use of school facilities.

Objectives and Scope

The objective of this follow up examination was to assess whether there has

been any improvement in the planning for, and utilisation of school facilities in

the metropolitan area. Information was gathered through interview and

document analysis on four major strategies used by the Department in their

overall asset management approach. These were: Planning, School

Rationalisation; Capital Resource Sharing; and Community Use of Schools.

Findings

Planning and School Rationalisation

The pattern of housing development in Perth has seen families with young children

move into new subdivisions with the expectation of immediate access to schools.

As these children move through the education system together and exit together,

they leave behind under utilised schools. This pattern is projected to continue

well into the 21st Century, and will see demand for new schools continue.

The 1994 report identified an estimated surplus capacity of 1 500 classrooms,

which translated into the equivalent of 150 primary schools or 50 secondary

schools. The replacement cost of these surplus classrooms was valued at $94

million to $150 million.

The under utilisation of schools also led to a significant variation in operating

costs ranging from $3 330 to $5 415 per student annually across the 12 secondary

schools in the sample. The opportunity for cost saving to the State was estimated

to be $700 000 if the under utilised school was operating at the same cost per

student as the more fully utilised school.

The 1994 examination found a major cause of the under utilisation of schools to

be changes in population demographics. Although the Department was aware

that the impact of these changes lead to declining enrolments, they were unable

to prevent the accumulation of surplus accommodation. In particular, because

of the permanent nature of this accommodation, the Department was unable to

cater for increasing student numbers by moving this accommodation to other

areas.
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The Department has now established the “New Schools Committee” to oversee

the overall planning for new schools. New schools will be built to accommodate

higher peak enrolments; up to 1 800 secondary and 900 primary students.

Permanent facilities will be provided for the long term projected core enrolment

and temporary classrooms will be provided for short term additional enrolments.

New criteria have been developed for the establishment of new schools so that

planning can more readily address the impact of rising/falling populations on

utilisation. For example, where originally a new primary school was built for

every 1 375 new houses and one new secondary school for every four new

primary schools, the new standard is 1 800 houses per primary school and five

primary schools to one secondary.

Up to 50 per cent of the school population may be housed in temporary

classrooms (originally 30 per cent was the standard) and a range of design features

such as landscaping, pathways, air conditioning, and verandahs is aimed at

increasing the level of acceptance by staff and parents. It is acknowledged that

this will increase the ‘up front’ costs, but will lead to a greater degree of flexibility

and acceptance in the longer term.

A different approach is being adopted in planning for schools in areas of low

population with the role of the Department now being to ensure ‘provision of

schooling’ rather than the building of new schools. For example, at Ellenbrook,

the ‘Schools in Houses’ project involves leasing houses from a private developer

until the school population increases to a size which warrants the establishment

of a regular school.

Non-Government Schools

One reason for under utilisation of government school facilities is the continuing

growth in the non-government school sector with 25.5 per cent of students

currently attending non-government schools. Direct government funding per

student place in non-government schools is lower than for government schools

but the establishment of new non government schools impacts against the most

effective utilisation of existing government schools. The concept of planning for

potential sharing of campus and/or facilities has been explored with the non-

government school sector with little success to date.
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School Rationalisation

In 1994, a policy document on rationalisation of schools was released by the
Minister for Education entitled ‘Ensuring a Quality Education for all students in

Western Australian Government Schools’. This outlines the approach to
identifying schools with the potential for rationalisation with the objective of
obtaining the best educational outcomes with available resources by improving

resource management.

Central to this approach is an extensive consultative process involving parents,

community and the Department. If a recommendation for closure of a school is
made, the parents of students at that school determine the outcome through a
voting process.

The major factors for consideration in the process are educational benefits,
enrolments, facilities at the school under review, facilities at the school(s) at

which the students may be enrolled, financial and community and social issues.

The criteria used to identify schools for possible closure include: the ratio of

students to permanent classrooms being less than 20; a declining enrolment
trend where the school population has decreased by more than 20 per cent over
the last five years; and the annual cost per student exceeding $3 200 for a primary

student and $4 100 for a secondary student.

Since September 1994, 18 schools have voted to close or amalgamate producing

a net result of 12 school closures. Identified savings to June 30, 1995 comprise
recurrent savings of $1.3 million and notional savings of approximately $2 million.
These notional savings are based on costs of transportables, capital upgrades

and preventative maintenance.

The savings from rationalisation are returned to the education system to upgrade

facilities at other schools. Initially the school(s) receiving enrolments from
rationalised school(s) will benefit from upgrading identified during the
rationalisation process. For example, Tuart Hill voted for amalgamation of the

Junior Primary and Primary schools and the ‘new’ campus has been equipped
with a new Library Resource Centre.

If the cost of the proposals exceed three years of savings, there is the potential to
access the Schools Rationalisation Trust Fund to supplement available funds.

The Department is also examining other ways of improving the effective and
efficient use of their resources, including removing and relocating excess facilities;
modifying excess facilities for sale or lease; restructuring schools; and excision

and sale of surplus land.
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The School excisions project identifies where schools have excess land and where

it would be advantageous for the Department to sell the land and reallocate the

proceeds to address the backlog of facilities upgrading. The realisation of assets

is being applied toward upgrading facilities at schools to modern standards. The

Department of Land Administration has been engaged to manage the land

disposal process although the Education Department will still determine the sites,

method of disposal and utilisation of proceeds.

Another initiative is the development of the Strategic Asset Management Plan

which provides a policy framework for disposal of surplus school sites and areas

and provides for schools becoming more entrepreneurial; for example Perth

Modern School is renting out parking space for spectators at Subiaco Oval and

for nurses at Princess Margaret Hospital.

Capital Resource Sharing and Community Use

In recent years, budget restraints on government organisations and community

groups together with an increasing push in accountability for assets have led to

increasing calls for greater use of school facilities. This has been accompanied

by the acknowledgment that there is often duplication of similar facilities between

State and local government organisations. A number of school facilities are

suitable for use by the community and other groups, including libraries and

performing arts centres, classrooms and halls, swimming pools, gymnasia, sports

ovals and courts.

In 1978, the Department developed an initiative encouraging greater use of school

facilities by the community, with the responsibility being seen as that of the

individual schools.

In 1992, the Department drafted a new Community Use Policy delegating to

Principals greater authority and responsibility for community use of school

facilities.

Release of the policy was delayed owing to Crown Law advice on the limitations

of the current Education Act. These related to the authority of the Minister to

allow use of school facilities for other than sport or recreational purposes; the

proposed delegation of responsibility to Principals; and the responsibility of the

Minister to ensure that anyone using the facilities would not suffer injury as a

result of the state of the premises.
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In June 1993 a Memorandum of Understanding was signed between the State

and local governments on Capital Resource Sharing of Education and Related

Facilities. The Agreement places an obligation on each party to consult with the

other and the community in designing and managing new facilities to achieve

effective and cost efficient provision of public facilities.

In November 1994, Cabinet approval was given for amendment of the existing

Education Act to enable the Chief Executive Officer of the Department to enter

into arrangements with local government and other parties for provision and

use of school facilities. This amendment was also aimed at freeing up

administrative arrangements, allowing Principals to sign off agreements for

community use, enabling Principals to levy hire fees and bonds and enabling

funds to be retained in schools.

The Department has appointed a ‘Community Use and Capital Resource Sharing

Officer’ to coordinate community/non-government initiatives in joint

development and community use of facilities. Strategies have been developed

to enhance and support community use, including a promotional video and a

professional development package for schools personnel, local government and

community members. The Ministry of Sport and Recreation and the Western

Australian Municipal Association have offered practical support in the promotion

and delivery of the professional development aimed at more effective

management of existing school facilities and community use.

Legislative changes have been submitted to Parliament which facilitate

community use by providing for:

the Minister to delegate to the Chief Executive Officer of the Department

authority to enter into licence agreements for the provision of joint facilities;

arrangements for joint facilities to be negotiated with any parties (previously

restricted to local authorities only);

authorisation for agreement of use of school facilities to be delegated to

school principals;

authorisation for revenue from use of school facilities to be paid into school

funds which will offset the cost of providing facilities for community use;

and

authorisation for schools to charge a bond for use of facilities.

Approval has been obtained for the Government to provide self insurance for

the activities of community groups but schools will encourage community groups

to provide their own insurance where possible.
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A number of initiatives are under way to ensure that opportunities for joint

planning and/or use of buildings and facilities by State and local government

are identified and implemented where possible. These include:

the Treasury Evaluation Unit developing the requirement for ‘meaningful

consultation’ to occur between agencies and local government regarding

cooperative provision of facilities as part of the justification process for

funding; and

encouraging community organisations and commercial developers to enter

into partnerships with schools, for example a swimming pool being upgraded

by a private operator to use in providing swimming lessons led to all year

round use for the school and continuing maintenance at no cost to the

school.

Recent capital resource sharing proposals have been achieved at new schools

in Mandurah, Wanneroo, Canning Vale and Warnbro with consequential

significant savings in capital and recurrent costs. For example, savings to the

State of $100 000 at Mandurah and $150 000 at two Wanneroo schools with local

government benefiting from similar savings.

TAFE Sharing

Since the 1994 report, a Schools/TAFE Shared Facilities Group has been

established, comprising Planning Executives from the Western Australian

Department of Training and the Department. All project proposals are considered

to determine the potential for sharing. Problem areas are identified with a view

to encouraging action and resolution, for example, a new school library has

gone to tender for Northam Senior High School which incorporates joint use

with TAFE’s C Y O’Connor College.

A report has been prepared for the Minister for Education on joint provision and

sharing for 1994–95. A total of 20 projects were examined during the year, in 11

of which potential for shared arrangements has been identified.
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Key Finding

The Pastoral Board has made considerable progress towards improving

the effectiveness of its administration of Pastoral Leases.

Background

The pastoral region of Western Australia covers some 95 million hectares and

558 pastoral leases. The Pastoral Board of Western Australia (the Board) has

legislative responsibility under the Land Act (1933) to administer the leasing of

Crown pastoral lands. In 1994–95 some 44 transfers were processed by the Board

and approved for transfer by the Minister for Lands. The Board also monitors

the condition of pastoral leases and obtains assurances from lessees regarding

the management of existing or transferred leases.

In May 1994, a report was presented to Parliament on the effectiveness of the

administration of the pastoral leasing process including the long term sustainable

development and economic return on leased Crown land.

The examination found that the Board was accountable, acted in the interest of

the State, and liaised well with relevant agencies. However, the report found

that the effectiveness of the Board could be enhanced and 12 recommendations

were made addressing:

legislative changes to clarify the role of the Board and the administration of

the pastoral lease process;

improvements to information and financial systems;

changes to inspection procedures, frequencies and reporting of carrying

capacity; and

a need to review policies and processes to assure lessee competence.

Objectives and Scope

A follow up examination was conducted in February 1996 to assess progress

made since tabling the 1994 report. The examination involved the review of

documents and interview of staff of the Pastoral Board. This report details the

findings of that examination.
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Findings

The Board has accepted the thrust of the 1994 Report with implementation of

nine of the 12 recommendations completed or under way. These include:

New legislation awaiting passage through Parliament. Legislative changes

to the Land Act before Parliament propose a greater definition of the role of

the Board and includes an emphasis on the monitoring and management

of pastoral land. The Board is set to increase membership to include members

with environmental and additional land management expertise.

Improved computer information systems to enhance access to leasehold

and environmental conditions.

Changes to inspection procedures to provide for systematic appraisals of

the rangeland condition of leases.

A recommendation that the Board should have a greater involvement in lease

reinstatement procedures has not been taken forward. The Board found that

the circumstances of the only relevant incident where a forfeited lease was

subsequently reinstated were unique and no change to existing arrangements

was necessary. The reinstatement was agreed and effected by direction at

Executive Government level in which the Board was not involved.

The 1994 report also made two recommendations regarding the implementation

of lease transfer policies, assessment procedures and criteria to provide further

assurance that lessees have sufficient competence and financial viability to

manage pastoral leases. The Board considered this issue and expressed concerns

about possible interference with commercial transactions between a willing seller

and a willing buyer. The Board indicated that implementing additional procedures

to ensure a lease purchaser is a person deemed competent to manage a pastoral

lessee had disadvantages or restrictions to the vendor. The Board resolved that

“..the present practices in dealing with pastoral lease transfers should remain in

place unless future experience dictates a review of these current procedures is

warranted.”
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Key Findings

The Department for Family and Children’s Services has taken steps to

clarify its children’s services objectives and performance indicators and

has enhanced the delivery of information to the public.

The Department is working more closely with the Education Department

of Western Australia and with its Commonwealth counterpart and has

recently agreed with the Commonwealth to review the needs-based

planning approach to joint child care programs.

Background

In 1993, a report was presented to Parliament on Child Care in Western Australia.

The report made a number of recommendations regarding role of the Department

for Family and Children’s Services (the Department) in child care, including the

need to: clarify the objective of the children’s services role of the Department

and develop measures of the effectiveness and efficiency of that role; improve

the means by which child care needs are assessed and ensure transparency of

that process; broaden the base of child care provision in the community; and

improve cooperation with the counterpart Commonwealth department and with

the Education Department of Western Australia (EDWA).

Two wide ranging studies of child care currently under way are the Council of

Australian Governments (COAG) Child Care Working Group on a national

framework for children’s services, and the Child Care Task Force set up by the

Economic Planning Advisory Commission (EPAC), both of which have the

potential to impact how and by whom children’s services are delivered.

Objectives and Scope

This follow up report examined the extent to which the recommendations have

been adopted and relevant action implemented. In order to gather information,

meetings were held with the Department and with relevant community interest

groups and associations, and relevant reports and discussion papers were studied.
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Findings

Review

The Department indicated that a ‘Review of Children’s Services in Western

Australia’ was commissioned in 1994 in order to respond to the findings of the

1993 report. The Review Report proposed a number of changes, including:

that the Commonwealth and State Governments review the division of

responsibility for jointly delivered child care programs in order to enhance

the efficiency and effectiveness of the services;

that the role of the Department in child care should be adjusted to focus on

support for the industry and service users, through the licensing, regulation

and monitoring of services and the identification of community child care

needs; and

strengthening of the capacity of the Child Care Services Board.

The Minister tabled the Review Report in Parliament in November 1995 and

indicated that he had immediately adopted three recommendations:

renegotiation of the Agreement with the Commonwealth Government;

transfer of the program for four year olds to EDWA; and

provision of a computer based information system to the Child Care Services

Board.

The Minister invited public submissions on the remaining recommendations,

with a closing date of February 29, 1996. The submissions were not analysed for

this report.

In 1995, the State Government introduced the ‘Good Start’ program which

transfers, over three years, the program for four year olds from the Department

for Family and Childrens Services to EDWA. Transfer of the program will remove

a major element of the Department’s responsibility in relation to delivery of

children’s services, while remaining child care-related activities will include

implementation of the understanding with the Commonwealth regarding the

National Child Care Strategy, facilitation or funding of Vacation and Occasional

Care programs, and the planning, licensing and monitoring of child care facilities

in Western Australia.
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Since the 1993 report the Department has revised its Program structure, reducing
its six Programs to two, and is currently establishing new Performance Indicators
and Program Statements. Given the high level of these indicators, child care
services does not appear as a distinct activity. The Department has drawn up
new contracts for service deliverers of the four year old program to include
objectives and performance indicators and plans to similarly adjust the contracts
for Vacation Care and Occasional Care. In addition, performance indicators are
being developed by the COAG Child Care Working Group and by the Industry
Commission, both of which are expected to lead to greater accountability for
services jointly funded with the Commonwealth Government.

Needs-based Planning

The 1993 report highlighted the lack of clear information about child care needs.
Essentially, the same planning methods are still in place. However the Department
advised that agreement has been reached with the Commonwealth Department
of Human Services and Health to review the needs-based planning process. The
computer based information system being provided to the Child Care Services
Board will enhance the Department’s ability to collect information for the
purposes of planning.

The ‘Parent Information Centres’, established by the Department under a pilot
program, will provide an opportunity for the Department to better publicise its
services, for parents to relay their needs to the Department, and for the
Department to collect information about the preferred modes of child care
service delivery.

The level of unmet demand for child care places in the past has occupied the
attention and available resources of the Department and masked the need for
careful planning of types of care and the nature of the facilities in which that
care should be provided. The Department’s District Children’s Services Officers
collect information regarding demand for and supply of places in their districts,
however there is potential to enhance this information as an input to the planning
process.

New approaches to service provision

The 1993 report suggested that attention be given to innovative approaches to
child care provision, to informal care and the participation of the private sector.
In the intervening period, the focus of both public and private sector energies
has been on satisfying the unmet demand for full and part-time work-related
child care, with little alteration to modes of service delivery or the role of informal
care.
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The agreement signed recently between the Commonwealth and the State
regarding the Co-ordination of the Expanded National Child Care Strategy
provides that 40 per cent of the places in Long Day Care, Family Day Care and

Outside School Hours Care can be established in innovative service models.

Since 1992, no additional places have been provided in Western Australia under
the National Child Care Strategy. Private child care service provision has increased

and the profile of child care provision in Western Australia in January 1996 showed
66 per cent of long day care centres are run by the private sector, 32 per cent are
government subsidised and two per cent are ‘other’ (ie. TAFE centres). The

Department has worked closely with private providers and is collaborating with
its Commonwealth Government counterpart, the Department of Human Services
& Health, to produce a publication which will offer suggestions and provide

information for those considering establishment of a privately owned and run
child care service.

The 1993 report suggested that the Department focus on flexibility in locating

and designing buildings used for child care service delivery and this comment
was cited in ‘Strategic Asset Management – An Overview’, a paper published by
Treasury in June 1994. The Department has so far addressed this in relation to

new facilities by planning for the use of transportables in some locations for
new child care centres rather than ‘permanent’ building structures. In addition,
cooperation (under the ‘Direct Partnership’ initiative) between the

Commonwealth, State and local governments has led to agreement to build
multi-purpose Community Centres (in Australind and Manjimup) with funding
from the three governments. The potential benefit of incorporating flexible

building options into the planning process is underlined by the fact that the
transfer of the four year old program to EDWA will remove a major activity from
Family Centres. The future use of the Family Centre buildings is yet to be

determined.

Cooperation

At the time of the 1993 report, State and Commonwealth governments were not
in agreement on implementation of the 1992–96 National Child Care Strategy.

Agreement between the governments was reached in early 1996, detailing the
relative contributions and responsibilities of the two governments in relation to
provision of child care places agreed under the 1992–96 Agreement. An

Agreement Implementation Committee has been formed between the State and
Commonwealth to ensure effective and efficient delivery of services to the

community.
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The Department and EDWA have established a joint committee to facilitate

coordination of children’s services across the two agencies and in particular to

manage the transfer of services for four year old children to EDWA. Continued

cooperation between the two departments will help to ensure that parents and

children receive the best possible benefits from the revised four year old program.

There also exists an opportunity to link discussion of the recommendations of

the Report of the Review of Children’s Services with the COAG and EPAC study

processes in order to focus effort on the most efficient and effective delivery of

child care services to the Western Australian community.
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The on-going operations of the public sector are administered by the Government

of the day which assigns responsibility for the control of a portfolio of departments

and statutory authorities to individual Ministers. In line with this structure, the

results of routine audits of departments, statutory authorities and other

government agencies are reported on a ministerial portfolio basis. Within each

portfolio the results are categorised as follows:

Financial Statement Audit Work

Satisfactory Findings

Explanation for Qualified Audit Opinions

Other Matters Impacting Financial Statements

Other Audit Findings

Results of Controls, Compliance and Accountability Examinations

Legal Compliance Matters

Unless otherwise noted, audit findings relate to the audit period July 1, 1994 to

June 30, 1995.
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Premier; Treasurer; Minister for Public Sector
Management; Youth; Federal Affairs

Financial Statement Audit Work

Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Commission on Government 22/11/95

Official Corruption Commission 24/11/95

R&I Holdings (1/10/94-30/9/95) 20/2/96

The Anzac Day Trust (1/1/95-31/12/95) 6/3/96

Treasurer’s Annual Statements 26/10/95
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Deputy Premier; Minister for Commerce and Trade;
Regional Development; Small Business

Financial Statement Audit Work

Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Gascoyne Development Commission 2/2/96

Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission 4/12/95

Great Southern Development Commission 13/10/95

Kimberley Development Commission 22/11/95

Peel Development Commission 8/12/95

Perth International Centre for Application
  of Solar Energy 9/11/95

Pilbara Development Commission 27/10/95

Small Business Development Corporation 20/10/95

South West Development Commission 30/11/95

Wheatbelt Development Commission 14/11/95
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Minister for Resources Development; Energy;
Education; Leader of the House in the Legislative
Assembly

Financial Statement Audit Work

Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Country High School Hostels Authority 15/11/95

Education Department of Western Australia 14/11/95

Secondary Education Authority 24/11/95

Trustees of the Public Education Endowment 22/11/95

Other Audit Findings

Results of Controls, Compliance and Accountability Examinations

Education Department of Western Australia

First Steps Consulting Unit (FSCU)

The First Steps program is an innovative learning program for primary students

to aid in their literacy and numeracy development. It was developed over a

number of years by staff from the Department and was successfully implemented

in a number of primary schools throughout the State. The success of the program

in identifying children’s learning needs and developing their literacy and

numeracy skills at an appropriate rate has brought much attention throughout

the Education sector within Australia and in other countries such as New Zealand,

Singapore, England, Canada and the United States.
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In view of local and overseas interest which the program has attracted, the

Department established a First Steps marketing team to undertake the necessary

preparatory work for the commercialisation of the program with one objective

being the recoupment of some of the investment in this program. Another

objective was to increase the numeracy and literacy skills of primary school

students throughout Australia.

Publishing Agreement

Following a tendering process the Department entered into an agreement with

an external publisher to publish and market the First Steps curriculum materials.

The Department is currently providing in-service training courses involving the

use of these materials on a fee-for-service basis and receives royalties for the

sale of curriculum materials.

The agreement between the Department and an external publisher for the

publishing rights to the First Steps curriculum materials has been established in

accordance with government regulations and with the support of the State Supply

Commission.

Financial and Contract Management Expertise

The review of the FSCU revealed that the financial and accounting functions

were being performed by the Manager of the Unit who did not have financial

management expertise or contract negotiation experience.

This situation was acknowledged by the Department and an officer from the

Finance Directorate has been assigned to work closely with the FSCU to ensure

that adequate financial records are kept and that efficient financial procedures

are maintained.

Ordering of First Steps Materials and Debtors Procedures

The agreement with the publisher of the First Steps materials states that the

Department is able to obtain the books at a discount for distribution to schools

in Western Australia and for participants of the in-service courses conducted by

the FSCU both in Australia and overseas. Under this agreement the FSCU is

responsible for administering the scheme and bearing the risks associated with

the ordering of materials, invoicing clients and the collection of moneys.
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The FSCU currently maintains a manual sundry debtors system which is separate

from that of the Department’s. A review of the system highlighted that procedures

need to be formalised to ensure that:

fees and charges are defined and approved by management;

debtors balances are complete and accurate;

proper follow up procedures are effected for the recovery and collection of

debts; and

the system is integrated with the Department’s own debtors systems for

reporting purposes.

At June 30, 1995 the amount of outstanding invoices for books and professional

development courses totalled $401 542, which was additional to that initially

reported in the Department’s financial statements.

Subsequent to audit review, management have:

entered into discussion with the publisher about the unsatisfactory nature

of the ordering processes associated with discounted books. The procedures

are being reviewed; and

acknowledged the need for assistance to be provided to the FSCU in effecting

adequate debtors management and control.
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Minister for Primary Industry; Fisheries

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Herd Improvement Service of Western Australia 23/10/95

The Grain Pool of Western Australia (1/11/94-31/10/95) 21/12/95

Perth Market Authority 30/10/95

Potato Marketing Corporation of
  Western Australia (1/10/94–30/9/95) 6/12/95

Western Australian Meat Industry Authority 7/12/95

Western Australian Meat Marketing Corporation 26/10/95

Other Matters Impacting Financial Statements

Dried Fruits Board 20/11/95

Horticultural Produce Commission 23/11/95

The Carnarvon Banana Industry Compensation
  Committee 23/11/95

The Fruit Growing Industry Trust Fund Committee 24/11/95

The Potato Growing Industry Trust Fund
  Advisory Committee 24/11/95

The Poultry Industry Trust Fund Committee
  (1/8/94–31/7/95) 23/11/95

The Western Australian Egg Marketing Board 2/11/95

Submission of Financial Statements and Performance Indicators by
  the Statutory Date

The above agencies with the exception of the Poultry Industry Trust Fund

Committee failed to submit their performance indicators for audit within the

two month period specified in section 68 of the Financial Administration and
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Audit Act 1985. The Dried Fruits Board and the Western Australian Egg Marketing

Board also failed to submit the financial statements for audit within the prescribed

time.

Further, the respective Boards with the exception of the Dried Fruits Board and

the Western Australian Egg Marketing Board did not pass a resolution adopting

the financial statements and performance indicators as required by Treasurer’s

Instructions 947 and 905 respectively.
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Minister for Mines; Lands; Minister assisting the
Minister for Public Sector Management; Leader of the
Government in the Legislative Council

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Coal Mines Accident Relief Trust Fund 27/10/95

Minerals and Energy Research Institute
  of Western Australia 19/10/95

The Coal Miner’s Welfare Board of Western Australia 27/10/95

Western Australian Land Authority 25/10/95

Other Audit Findings

Results of Controls, Compliance and Accountability Examinations

Department of Land Administration

Disaster Recovery Plan

The Department operates a centralised computing facility which supports a

number of complex systems to provide both internal and external users with

user friendly information related to land.

Whilst the Department has an informal arrangement with the Water Authority of

Western Australia for disaster recovery this arrangement has not been tested.

The Department is in the process of outsourcing its computing requirements

and has specified in the contract the necessity to prepare a disaster recovery

plan. This course of action is supported and needs to be finalised in a timely

manner.
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Client Server Systems

The Department maintains a number of systems on a local area network to

effectively meet its business requirements. A review was conducted of the

Customer Accounting System, Debtor System, Central Mapping System and the

Hardcat Fixed Assets System.

Controls over the Customer Accounting system were found to be adequate, whilst

in relation to the other systems there was inadequate segregation of duties in

that the systems administrators had access to perform normal data entry

functions. This shortcoming was further exacerbated through the systems

administrators being able to access the administration functions from remote

terminals and the absence of an effective facility to ensure passwords were

periodically changed.

The Department has since enhanced internal controls over these systems by

removing the data entry facility from the Systems Administrators and has already

planned to review controls upon the introduction of the new Financial

Management System in the 1996-1997 period.
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Minister for Transport

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Albany Port Authority 31/10/95

Dampier Port Authority 24/11/95

Fremantle Port Authority 17/10/95

Metropolitan (Perth) Passenger Transport Trust 15/11/95

Port Hedland Port Authority 23/10/95

The Eastern Goldfields Transport Board 22/11/95

Explanation for Qualified Audit Opinion

Western Australian Coastal Shipping Commission 13/12/95

The Commission did not comply with the terms and conditions of the partial

exemption from the State Supply Commission Act 1991, in that open public

tenders were not called, and the delegated limit of $500 000 for the purchase of

goods and services was exceeded, in the letting of a stevedoring contract.
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Minister for Employment and Training; Tourism; Sport

and Recreation; Parliamentary and Electoral Affairs

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Rottnest Island Authority 24/11/95

State Employment and Skills Development Authority 16/11/95

Western Australian Institute of Sport 22/11/95

Western Australian Tourism Commission 9/11/95

Explanation for Qualified Audit Opinions

Building and Construction Industry Training Board

Both the 1994 and 1995 opinions of the Board were delayed and issued on

November 30, 1995 due to matters arising from the 1994 audit.

Building and Construction Industry Training 30/11/95
  Board (1/7/93-30/6/94)

Disclaimer of Opinion

The 1994 opinion of the Board was qualified as the Board had not certified the

financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Financial

Administration and Audit Act 1985. The Board qualified the certification of the

accounts and financial statements in respect of:

the enforcement of the collection of the Training Levy in certain sectors

within the construction industry;

the values of assets;

the classification of liabilities; and

the adequacy of the internal control environment.

The audit of the Board revealed similar concerns.



75

Minister for Employment and Training; Tourism; Sport and Recreation; Parliamentary and
Electoral Affairs

As a result an opinion was unable to be provided on:

the adequacy of the controls exercised by the Board; and

whether the Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance Sheet and

Statement of Cash Flows and the Notes fairly presented the transactions for

the year or the financial position of the Board.

Building and Construction Industry Training 30/11/95
  Board (1/7/94-30/6/95)

As a consequence of the above qualification, the 1995 statements were also

affected as the opening balances could not be verified. Therefore, the audit

opinion for 1995 did not extend to:

the comparative figures; and

the Statement of Cash Flows and related notes.

Western Australian Sports Centre Trust 24/11/95

Benefits to an Officer

The Trust has provided benefits to an officer without having a legal obligation or

the necessary authorisation to provide such benefits. The Officer concerned

was redeployed by the Trust in August 1994. As this move involved a salary

reduction, the General Manager approved that this ex-member of staff could

retain a leased vehicle and a mobile phone for a period of 18 months after

redeployment from the Trust.

The arrangement also provided for petrol and maintenance costs to be met by

the Trust. Subsequently, in August, 1995 this arrangement was cancelled and the

ex-member of staff was given a cash compensation of $8 000 in lieu of the Trust

meeting further costs. The total monetary benefit received by the ex-employee

as a result of these transactions is estimated to have exceeded

$20 000.

Payments of this nature can only be made if approved by the Treasurer as an

‘act of grace payment’ allowable under section 58B of the Financial

Administration and Audit Act 1985. This was not done.
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Minister for Family and Children’s Services; Seniors;

Fair Trading; Women’s Interests

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Real Estate and Business Agents Supervisory Board 19/10/95

Settlement Agents Supervisory Board 19/10/95
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Minister for Finance; Racing and Gaming; Minister

assisting the Treasurer

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Government Employees’ Superannuation Board 27/11/95

Racecourse Development Trust (1/8/94–31/7/95) 17/10/95

Racing Penalties Appeal Tribunal of
  Western Australia (1/8/94–31/7/95) 17/10/95

Totalisator Agency Board (1/8/94–31/7/95) 24/11/95

Western Australian Exim Corporation 22/11/95

Western Australian Greyhound Racing
  Association (1/8/94–31/7/95) 20/11/95

Other Audit Findings

Results of Controls, Compliance and Accountability Examinations

Government Employees’ Superannuation Board

Information Technology Controls

During the course of the audit, weaknesses in internal controls over information

technology systems were identified in the following areas:

inadequate physical security measures to protect the computer installation

from unauthorised access, temperature extremes and power interruptions.

absence of formal documented contingency plans for recovery procedures

and alternative processing arrangements in the event of a computer failure.

inadequate management review of changes to databases and programs to

ensure all changes were authorised.

absence of a protected copy of program code which is necessary to support

and maintain application software.

These matters are being addressed by the Board.
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Attorney General; Minister for Justice; the Environment;

the Arts

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Legal Contribution Trust (1/7/95-31/12/95) 9/4/96

Legal Costs Committee 27/11/95

Ministry of Justice 24/10/95

Perth Theatre Trust 27/10/95

Screen West (Inc.) 2/11/95

The Board of the Art Gallery of Western Australia 27/10/95

The Burswood Park Board 17/10/95

The Kings Park Board 24/11/95

The Library Board of Western Australia 25/10/95

The Western Australian Museum 9/11/95

Western Australian Financial Institutions Authority 1/11/95

Zoological Gardens Board 3/11/95

Other Matters Impacting Financial Statements

Swan River Trust 16/11/95

Funding Agreement

In September 1995 the Trust paid $750 000 to the Western Australian Estuarine

Research Foundation. This was the first advance of financial assistance to the

Foundation that will total $2 million over three years.

The grant was paid, approximately three months before an agreement between

the Trust and the Foundation recording the terms and conditions of the financial

assistance had been finalised. Proper accountability requires that funds should

not be advanced until funding agreements have been finalised and signed.



79

Attorney General; Minister for Justice; the Environment; the Arts

Department for the Arts 3/11/95

Submission of Financial Statements Within Statutory Deadlines

The Department obtained an extension as required by section 70 of the Financial

Administration and Audit Act 1985 to submit their financial statements by August

31, 1995. These financial statements were not received by this Office until

September 14, 1995. They were subjected to a preliminary review and

subsequently returned to the Department for correction. The corrected

statements were received in this Office on October 24, 1995.

Other Audit Findings

Results of Controls, Compliance and Accountability Examinations

Department of Conservation and Land Management (CALM)

Harvesting and Marketing of Sandalwood

The harvesting and marketing of sandalwood provides over $14 million per

annum of export income to this State. In December 1993 the Minister accepted

the recommendations of the Sandalwood review committee and requested the

Executive Director of CALM to call expressions of interest for the processing,

marketing and export of Sandalwood. A contract was let on a non exclusive

basis for a period of five years.

A review of the new contract procedures was conducted to ascertain if the

expected benefits had been realised.

It was ascertained that the new contract has resulted in a substantial gain to the

State. After adjustment for differences in accounting treatment, fees paid to the

new contractor were $1.072 million compared to $1.754 million in the previous

year for the equivalent service. The saving of $.682 million exceeded the estimate

of $.573 million. The new contract also resulted in additional savings from

transport and shipping arrangements of $59 000 and $109 000 respectively.

CALM is continuing to explore new avenues to maximise the benefits to the

State.
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Minister for Labour Relations; Housing

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Construction Industry Long Service Leave 2/11/95
  Payments Board

Other Matters Impacting Financial Statements

Commissioner for Workplace Agreements 24/11/95

Register of Public Property

The Commissioner did not maintain an accurate Register of Public Property

through not updating all acquisitions and disposals, and only conducting partial

stocktakes of public property assets.

Accurate records of Public Property are essential to enable management to

exercise proper control of property for preparing accrual based financial

statements in 1995-96.

Management is taking action to address these concerns.

Department of Productivity and Labour Relations 30/10/95

Register of Public Property

The Department did not maintain an accurate Register of Public Property through

not updating all acquisitions and disposals, and only conducting partial

stocktakes of public property assets.

Accurate records of Public Property are essential to enable management to

exercise proper control of property for preparing accrual based financial

statements in 1995-96.

Management is taking action to address these concerns.
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Minister for Water Resources

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Bunbury Water Board (1/10/94-30/9/95) 12/3/96

Water Authority of Western Australia 15/11/95

Waterways Commission 16/11/95
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Minister for Works; Services; Disability Services;

Minister assisting the Minister for Justice

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Office of the State Supply Commission 31/10/95

State Supply Commission 24/10/95

Western Australian Building Management Authority 3/11/95

Other Matters Impacting Financial Statements

Disability Services Commission 19/10/95

Grants and Subsidies Provided to Non-Government Organisations

Matters relating to weaknesses in procedures and non compliance with

established procedures were reported in the Second General Report for 1995.



83

Minister for Planning; Heritage

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

East Perth Redevelopment Authority 26/10/95

The National Trust of Australia (W.A.) 30/10/95

Explanation for Qualified Audit Opinion

Subiaco Redevelopment Authority 15/11/95

Capital Works in Progress

Expenditure of $1.139 million incurred on the Subiaco Redevelopment Project

has been disclosed as a Non-Current Asset - Capital Works in Progress in the

Balance Sheet. Note 18 ‘Events occurring after Balance Date’ discloses that doubts

have arisen as to whether the project will proceed as uncertainty prevails until

agreement on financing is reached between the parties to the project. Future

benefits may not be realised from this expenditure in the event that the project

does not proceed. Accordingly, it was not possible to state whether the item was

fairly presented.
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Minister for Police; Emergency Services

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Western Australian Fire Brigades Board 27/10/95

Western Australian Fire Brigades Superannuation Board 30/10/95

Explanation for Qualified Audit Opinion

Police Licensing and Services Division (1/7/95 - 31/7/95) 5/2/96

Police Licensing and Services merged with the Department of Transport on

August 1, 1995. In accordance with section 65A of the Financial Administration

and Audit Act 1985, Police Licensing and Services prepared a final report,

including financial statements, for the period July 1 to July 31, 1995.

Penalty Fees on Late Vehicle Registrations

The Road Traffic Act 1974 provides that where a motor vehicle licence is not

renewed and the registration plates are not returned within 15 days then the

licensee is liable to pay a penalty fee equivalent to a six month licence fee or a

lesser sum as the Road Traffic Board determines. The Board has determined that

the penalty is to be half the annual licence fee of the particular vehicle concerned.

No action has been taken to recover the penalty fees applicable under the Road

Traffic Act 1974 where a motor vehicle licence is not renewed and the registration

plates are not returned within 15 days.

This issue has previously been reported. Management has indicated that action

is being taken to resolve this matter this financial year.
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Rebates to Seniors Card Holders

The practice of allowing 50 per cent rebates to Seniors Card holders for motor

vehicle drivers’ licence fees has continued since July 1991 without legislative

authority and has been previously reported.

Legislation allowing a 50 per cent rebate to Seniors Card holders in respect of

motor drivers’ licence fees has been passed by the Parliament and is effective

from November 27,1995.
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Minister for Local Government; Multicultural and

Ethnic Affairs

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Metropolitan Cemeteries Board 24/10/95
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Minister for Health; Aboriginal Affairs

Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Aboriginal Affairs Department 30/10/95

Aboriginal Material Preservation Fund 30/10/95

Animal Resources Authority 19/10/95

Local Health Authorities Analytical Committee 19/10/95

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust 4/1/96

The Western Australian Centre for Pathology
  and Medical Research 15/11/95

Western Australian Alcohol and Drug Authority 14/11/95

Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 19/12/95

Explanation for Qualified Audit Opinions

Health Department of Western Australia 31/10/95

Healthcare Linen

The Department’s opinion has again been qualified in respect to Healthcare Linen

operated by the Department as a depot under section 7 of the Hospitals and

Health Services Act 1927 (the Act). The Department has continued to operate

Healthcare Linen as if it were a separate legal entity from the Health Department.

The effect of not conducting the financial operations of Healthcare Linen through

the Consolidated Fund as required by the Financial Administration and Audit

Act 1985 is that Parliament has not been able to exercise direct control over the

public moneys resulting from the operations of Healthcare Linen.
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The financial statements of Healthcare Linen are not consolidated with the Health

Department’s financial statements but have been included as a separate statement

in the Department’s Annual Report to Parliament.

Transitional Payments – Public Hospitals

The Department implemented a Health Restructure Program to provide specific

purpose funds from the Hospital Fund to certain public hospitals to assist in the

restructuring and improvement of health services. The thrust of this program

was that initiatives undertaken were to realise operational savings which were

to be offset against the specific purpose funds provided. The amount of

$5 477 000 has been recorded in the Department’s 1994-95 financial statements

as an Administered Asset, Transitional Payments – Public Hospitals and this

disclosure implies that these moneys are recoverable amounts from respective

public hospitals.

Crown Solicitor’s opinion is that the Hospital Fund Act does not provide authority

for the making of repayable loans, the apparent nature of the transitional

payments, from the Fund. As a consequence it is considered that the accounting

treatment applied by the Department is inappropriate and therefore the audit

opinion on the Department’s 1994-95 financial statements has been qualified.

The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority 30/10/95

Aboriginal Lands Trust – Mining Rents and Royalties Trust Account

The Aboriginal Lands Trust was created as a separate body corporate without

administrative powers. This Trust is managed by The Aboriginal Affairs Planning

Authority. Trust income is paid into an Aboriginal Lands Trust Mining Rents and

Royalties Trust Account, administered by the Authority.

As reported previously this Trust Account has operated without Treasurer’s

approval for either the Trust Statement or bank account, as required by sections

10 and 21(1) respectively of the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, for

at least six years.

Treasury will not arrange for the relevant approvals until the Trust has the powers

to deal with its own financial administration. This approval is dependent on

amendments to the Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority Act 1972.
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Other Matters Impacting Financial Statements

Health Department of Western Australia

Interest Earnings on Patients’ Private Moneys

The Department has accumulated interest earnings of approximately $470 000

on certain trust accounts as at June 30, 1995. These interest moneys have not

been applied for the personal benefit and welfare of each patient as entitled, in

accordance with approved trust statements, as there is no efficient mechanism

for allocation of interest. Legal advice has indicated that these moneys should

be remitted to Treasury under section 13 of the Unclaimed Moneys Act 1990 (the

Act).

The Department is currently negotiating with Treasury in regard to the transfer

of these funds. Treasury indicated that unclaimed moneys could not be remitted

to the Treasury unless the moneys owed complied with the provisions of the

Unclaimed Moneys Act 1990. As it is not possible to identify amounts owing to

individuals the matter has been referred to the Crown Solicitor with a

recommendation that the Act be amended.

The Department is also working on establishing a policy for the treatment on

interest earnings on bank accounts which hospitals maintain for patients’ private

property (cash). Trust Statements for these hospitals allow for the earning of

bank interest which may be utilised in accordance with departmental policy.

Present Departmental policy is that the funds held should be in non-interest

bearing bank accounts other than where individual patient holdings exceed $400

in which case they are to be held in bank accounts in the name of the patient.
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Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Fremantle Hospital 27/11/95

King Edward Memorial Hospital for Women 20/11/95

Perth Dental Hospital 27/10/95

Princess Margaret Hospital for Children 20/11/95

Royal Perth Hospital 15/11/95

Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital 3/11/95
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Financial Statement Audit Work
Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Albany Health Service 19/10/95

Armadale-Kelmscott Memorial Hospital 24/11/95

Augusta District Hospital 15/11/95

Bentley Health Service 15/11/95

Beverley District Hospital Board 10/11/95

Boyup Brook Health Service 9/11/95

Bridgetown District Hospital Board 7/11/95

Brookton District Hospital Board 27/11/95

Broome District Hospital 22/10/95

Bruce Rock War Memorial Hospital Board 10/11/95

Bunbury Health Service 13/11/95

Busselton District Hospital 15/11/95

Carnarvon Regional Hospital 20/11/95

Collie Health Service 16/11/95

Coolgardie Nursing Home 15/11/95

Corrigin District Hospital Board 10/11/95

Cue Nursing Post 30/10/95

Cunderdin District Hospital 10/11/95

Dalwallinu District Hospital 4/12/95

Denmark District Hospital 19/10/95

Donnybrook/Balingup Health Service 16/11/95

Dumbleyung District Memorial Hospital Board 30/11/95
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Dundas Health Service 15/11/95

Esperance Health Service 10/11/95

Exmouth District Hospital 20/11/95

Fitzroy Crossing District Hospital 23/11/95

Geraldton Health Service 2/11/95

Gnowangerup District Hospital Board 27/10/95

Goomalling Health Service 4/12/95

Halls Creek District Hospital 22/11/95

Harvey District Hospital Board 24/11/95

Hawthorn Hospital 8/12/95

James T. Pollard Convalescent Hospital 30/11/95

Jerramungup Hospital Board 19/10/95

Kalamunda Health Service 10/10/95

Kalgoorlie Regional Hospital 9/11/95

Katanning Health Service 27/10/95

Kellerberrin Memorial Hospital Board 4/12/95

Kojonup District Hospital Board 27/10/95

Kukerin Nursing Post Board 27/11/95

Kununoppin and Districts Hospital Board 4/12/95

Kununurra District Hospital 20/11/95

Lake Grace and Districts Health Service 30/11/95

Laverton District Hospital 15/11/95

Leonora District Hospital 15/11/95

Lower North Metropolitan Health Service 16/11/95

Marble Bar Nursing Post 9/11/95

Margaret River District Hospital 14/11/95

Meekatharra District Hospital 9/11/95

Menzies Nursing Post 15/11/95
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Merredin Health Service 7/12/95

Moora District Hospital Board 4/12/95

Morawa and Districts Health Service 30/10/95

Mount Henry Hospital 14/11/95

Mount Magnet Nursing Post 30/10/95

Mukinbudin Nursing Post Board 7/12/95

Mullewa Health Services, Board of Management 31/10/95

Nannup District Hospital Board 7/11/95

Narembeen District Memorial Hospital Board 4/12/95

Narrogin Regional Hospital 30/11/95

Newman District Hospital 31/10/95

Nickol Bay District Hospital 15/11/95

North Midlands District Hospital Board 31/10/95

Northampton Kalbarri Health Services 31/10/95

Northcliffe Nursing Post Board 7/11/95

Numbala Nunga Nursing Home and Hospital 27/11/95

Onslow District Hospital 20/11/95

Paraburdoo District Hospital 20/11/95

Pemberton District Hospital Board 7/11/95

Pingelly District Hospital Board 30/11/95

Plantagenet District Hospital Board 23/10/95

Port Hedland Regional Hospital 3/11/95

Quadriplegic Centre Board 20/11/95

Quairading District Hospital Board 10/11/95

Ravensthorpe Health Service 15/11/95

Rockingham-Kwinana District Hospital 24/11/95

Roebourne District Hospital 15/11/95

Rottnest Island Nursing Post Board 24/11/95
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Sandstone Nursing Post 30/10/95

Southern Cross District Hospital Board 7/12/95

Sunset Hospital 10/11/95

Swan District Health Service 10/11/95

Tambellup Nursing Post Board 20/10/95

Telfer Nursing Post 3/11/95

Tom Price District Hospital 20/11/95

Wagin Health Service 30/11/95

Wanneroo Hospital 27/11/95

Warren District Hospital Board 9/11/95

West Kambalda Nursing Post 15/11/95

Wickepin Nursing Post 30/11/95

Wickham District Hospital 15/11/95

Williams Medical Centre Board 27/11/95

Wiluna Nursing Post Board 14/11/95

Wongan Hills District Hospital Board 4/12/95

Wooroloo District Hospital 9/11/95

Wyalkatchem-Koorda and Districts Hospital Board 6/12/95

Wyndham District Hospital 22/11/95

Yalgoo Nursing Post Board 30/10/95

Yarloop Health Service 27/11/95

York District Hospital 15/11/95
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Explanation for Qualified Audit Opinions

Boddington District Hospital Board 27/11/95

Payments in Advance of Receipt of Goods

In June 1995 the Board incurred payments of $11 497 in advance of the receipt

of goods being received. This is contrary to Treasurer’s Instruction 305, which

allows for payments to be incurred only when goods have been received, except

where payment in advance is required as a condition of purchase.

Stocktakes

No effective physical stocktake of the Hospital’s fixed assets with a written down

value totalling $985 438 was carried out during 1994-95 in accordance with

Treasurer’s Instruction 406 “Custody of Public Property”. The lack of physical

stocktake procedures means the Hospital Board is unable to effectively ensure

its assets are safeguarded against loss or damage.

Derby Regional Hospital 30/11/95

Comparative Figures

The audit opinion for the year 1993-94 was qualified because Fixed Assets and

associated Depreciation amounting to $15 795 603 and $753 045 respectively in

the Balance Sheet could not be verified. The qualification remains in respect of

the comparative figures for 1993-94 as shown in the 1994-95 Balance Sheet.

Kondinin District Hospital Board 27/11/95

Stocktakes

No effective physical stocktake of the Hospital’s fixed assets with a written down

value totalling $1 698 739 was carried out during 1994-95 in accordance with

Treasurer’s Instruction 406 “Custody of Public Property”. The lack of physical

stocktake procedures means the Hospital Board is unable to effectively ensure

its assets are safeguarded against loss or damage.

Northam Regional Hospital 30/11/95

Non Current Assets and Construction Works in Progress

The item Construction Works in Progress, shown in the Balance Sheet at

$13 621 874 is materially misclassified as the major component of the item relates

to the construction  costs of the Hospital which commenced operating in April
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1995. These costs should have been capitalised at June 30, 1995 as fixed assets.

Because of the lack of adequate accounts and records it was not possible to

establish precisely the amount to be capitalised. As a consequence it is not

possible to state that the line items Fixed Assets – Land and Buildings and

Construction Works in Progress shown under Non Current Assets in the Balance

Sheet at $565 724 and $13 621 874 respectively are fairly presented.

Further, depreciation expense for the year shown as $166 110 in the Income and

Expenditure Statement is materially understated. The construction cost of the

Hospital building ($13 621 874) was not included in the depreciation calculations.

Depreciation calculated on the building cost using the rate of 2 per cent per

annum would amount to an additional depreciation expense of $272 437.

It was also established that control over fixed assets was inadequate in that

necessary stocktaking and reconciliations had not been carried out during the

year as required by Treasurer’s Instruction 406. This was due in part to the lack

of appropriate accounts and records at the Hospital.

Other Matters Impacting Financial Statements

Peel Health Services 30/11/95

Controls Over Take-up of New Financial Systems

Controls over the take-up of the HCARe financial system were found to be

inadequate in that the Hospital could not in all instances provide sufficient

documentation to support a number of figures. Proper controls over the take-

up of financial systems are necessary to ensure figures in the financial statements

are complete and accurate. The Hospital has advised that they will take the

necessary action to verify the take-up.
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Other Matters Impacting a Range of Hospitals

A significant number of hospitals’ financial statements submitted for audit

required adjustments indicating a need for greater care in meeting basic

accountability obligations. In addition, a number of other control weaknesses

were identified during audits.

The key issues identified in the 1995 management letters have been summarised

below in a table along with the number of hospitals in which the issues were

highlighted.

Audit Finding Reported No of Findings

1. Basic Accountability *

Incurring & Certifying Officers not signing off 6

Payroll reconciliations not performed 11

Control weaknesses over salaries 5

Poor controls over expenditure 16

2. General Controls

Ineffective internal audit function 72

Poor quality of financial statements 85

No internal checking program (MICA) 54

Weaknesses with the HCare IT control environment 8

3. Financial Statements

Problems with maintaining the asset register 27

Non compliance with Accounting Standards (AAS30) 62

Inappropriate depreciation rates 6

4. Other

Insufficient insurance coverage 23

Other significant audit findings 43

TOTAL NUMBER OF AUDIT FINDINGS 418

*  Although basic housekeeping type issues, such deficiencies can facilitate fraudulent
behaviours.
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REQUEST AND OTHERREQUEST AND OTHER
AUDITSAUDITS

This section contains the results of audits requested by the Treasurer and those

carried out under the Corporations Law and Cemeteries Act 1986 not included

elsewhere in this Report.
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Request Audits

Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Beverley Frail Aged Lodge Inc. 16/12/95

Enterprise Park Business Association 7/11/95

R&I Delegated Agencies 7/11/95

The Director of Legal Aid and Others in Trust 5/12/95
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Corporations Law

Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Bank of Western Australia Ltd (1/10/94–30/9/95) 9/11/95

GF Limited (1/10/94–30/9/95) 8/11/95

Gold Corporation (Lanka) Pty Ltd 24/10/95

Grain Corporation of Western Australia Pty Ltd
  (1/10/94–30/9/95) 7/12/95

Perpetual Finance Corporation Ltd (1/10/94–30/9/95) 8/11/95

R & I Investment Holdings Pty Ltd (1/10/94–30/9/95) 9/11/95

R & I Life Limited (1/10/94-30/9/95) 8/11/95

Rally Australia Management Ltd 11/10/95

Trustees of Western Australia Limited
  (formerly R & I Trustees Ltd)  (1/10/94-30/9/95) 8/11/95

TW Custodians Limited (2/8/94-1/8/95) 8/11/95

WA Mint Pty Ltd 24/10/95
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Cemeteries Act 1986

Opinion Issued

Satisfactory Findings

Albany Cemetery Board 4/1/96

Bunbury Cemetery Board 12/12/95

Chowerup Cemetery Board 30/11/95

Dwellingup Cemetery Board 20/10/95
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PROGRESS MADE BYPROGRESS MADE BY
AGENCIES ON MATTERSAGENCIES ON MATTERS
RAISED IN PREVIOUSRAISED IN PREVIOUS
GENERAL REPORTSGENERAL REPORTS

This section is included to enable Parliament and other readers to gauge progress

made with remedial action taken by agencies which were the subject of adverse

comment or specific recommendations in the Second General Report for 1994

and the First General Report for 1995.

For ease of reference the page number on which an agency appears in those

reports is given after its title together with a reference to the specific report.

For example, Ministry of Justice (2nd, 1994, Pages 39 and 40).
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Ministry of Justice (2nd, 1994, Pages 39 & 40)

Information Technology General Controls

While the Ministry has made progress on the issues, it does not expect to fully

resolve some matters until 1995-96. The most significant matters still outstanding

relate to disaster recovery and segregation of duties. A disaster recovery plan

has been prepared and is awaiting final approval. However, implementation of

the plan requires substantial hardware purchases and these are planned for 1995-

96. There is inadequate segregation of the production and development

environments within the Ministry’s computer operations. Procedures have been

put in place to reduce the associated risks, however, the issue cannot be fully

resolved until the Ministry completes the implementation of its Access Control

Software and also addresses a number of other security issues which it has

previously identified.

Health Department of Western Australia (1st, 1995, Pages 55 & 56)

Hospital Laundry and Linen Service [now known as Healthcare Linen]

Healthcare Linen has continued to operate as if it were a separate legal entity

from the Health Department and the audit opinion of the Health Department

was again qualified on similar lines for the year ended June 30, 1994. Comments

are included in the Ministerial Portfolios section of this report.

Country High School Hostels Authority (1st, 1995, Page 45)

Section 42 Estimates

The Authority has prepared and submitted annual estimates for the 1994-95

financial year to the Minister for approval.

Approval of Bank Accounts

The Authority has obtained Treasurer’s approval for residential colleges to operate

bank accounts.

Education Department of Western Australia (1st, 1995, Pages 42 & 45)

Payroll

The audit qualification on payroll controls has been removed. Corrective action

is continuing to be implemented and monitored by the Department.
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Recovery of Overpaid Salaries

Corrective action is continuing to be implemented and monitored by the

Department resulting in the balance of overpaid salaries decreasing.

Morawa and Districts Health Service (1st, 1995, Page 63)

Acquisition of Transportable Dwelling

This matter relates to a 1993–94 audit qualification which was a one off situation

instigated by the previous Hospital Administrator who has since resigned. The

Board of Management has taken measures to ensure that a similar situation does

not re-occur.

This has been reflected by a generally satisfactory audit result in 1994–95 audit,

which indicates a marked improvement over the control environment with

respect to the hospital’s financial operations.

Employee Entitlement

Contrary to Health Department of Western Australia policy guidelines on staff

accommodation, the Board subsidised rental and utility charges for an employee

of the hospital. This resulted in a qualification to the 1993-94 audit opinion.

This matter is now being resolved by the Board who have commenced legal

action against the previous Hospital Administrator via the Crown Law

Department.

The Board is aware of current policies relating to employment entitlements.

Totalisator Agency Board (1st, 1995, Page 51)

Management and Control of Information Technology – Computer
  Security

The Totalisator Agency Board (TAB) is reliant on its computer systems to maintain

its trading operations and provide financial information. It is essential that it has

effective computer security measures to enable it to continue to rely on these

systems.

In previous years General Reports have included comment on control

weaknesses and noted recommendations to assist management to improve the

administration of computer security. These recommendations have been

substantially implemented and further complemented by TAB management’s
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initiatives. These initiatives included engaging a consultant in July 1994 to carry

out a complete review of computer security and to develop an action plan to

address any outstanding recommendations.

During 1994–95 TAB management has addressed several key recommendations

which were outstanding at the completion of the previous audit. These included

the formal approval of the TAB’s computer security policy and the requirement

for improved security management of ADABAS databases.

It is understood that the requirement to provide for improved user management

involvement in computer security administration remains outstanding, but is

being addressed as part of an implementation plan drawn up by management.

Geraldton Port Authority (1st, 1995, Page 40)

Understatement of Assets and Other Capital

The Authority has now complied with the Treasurer’s Instruction governing the

accounting treatment of contributions received from private developers for the

construction of a new bulk shiploader. The necessary accounting adjustments

were effected during 1994-95 resulting in a clear audit opinion for 1994-95.

Government Employees’ Superannuation Board (1st, 1995, Pages 50)

Investments – Central Business District Property Holdings

As result of uncertainties caused by differing professional assessments of the

value of the Board’s central business district property holdings at June 30, 1994,

it was not possible to determine the fair value of this investment for financial

reporting purposes.

At June 30, 1995 the Board adopted a valuation for these holdings that was

$82 million less than the previous year. Although a second valuation, obtained

for audit purposes, of the Central Park property differed from the valuation

adopted by the Board, the difference was considered to be within acceptable

limits given the subjective nature of valuations. Consequently, the Board’s

valuation was considered to be fair.
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Port Hedland Port Authority (1st, 1995, Page 41)

Marine System

The Authority has reviewed the operational procedures and system controls to

ensure the integrity of the data held by the system and the reports generated

from it are accurate. A review of the system found the data and reports produced

to be reliable.

Western Australian Fire Brigades Board (1st, 1995, Pages 69, 88)

General Computer Controls Review

The issues raised in relation to weaknesses in general computer controls have

been satisfactorily resolved with the exception that an adequate disaster recovery

plan has not been developed. The Board advise that a plan will be established

during 1995–96.

Secondary Education Authority (1st, 1995, Page 46)

Section 42 Estimates

The Authority has prepared and submitted annual estimates for the 1994-95

financial year to the Minister for approval.

The Kings Park Board (1st, 1995, Page 53)

Section 42 Estimates

The Board has prepared and submitted annual estimates for the 1994-95 financial

year to the Minister for approval. Review of the estimates indicated that accrual

accounting had not been fully complied with. This matter will be reviewed in

the next audit period.

Accounting Expertise

This has now been addressed by the appointment of a properly qualified Finance

Manager.

The Board of the Art Gallery of Western Australia (1st, 1995, Page 53)

Funds Drawn in Advance

Improvement was noted in this area. The Art Gallery did not draw on its overdraft

facility for the purpose of investing funds in its cash management account in

1994–95.
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Screen West (Inc.) (Formerly The Western Australian Film Council)
  (1st, 1995, Page 54)

Name of the Council

Appropriate approval has now been given to use Screen West (Inc.) as the legal

trading name.

Financial Statements

The Council has complied with the reporting and disclosure requirements of

the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985 and Treasurer’s Instructions for

the 1994–95 financial year.

Section 42 Estimates

The Authority has prepared and submitted accrual based annual estimates for

the 1994–95 financial year to the Minister for approval.

The Western Australian Egg Marketing Board (1st, 1995, Page 38)

Information Technology Issues

The Board has reviewed its computing requirements and has let a contract for

the installation of a new computing system. The specification requires that proper

documentation be provided and an adequate disaster recovery plan be

developed. The new system will be reviewed during the 1995–96 audit.
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AGENCY INDEXAGENCY INDEX

Agencies Pages

Aboriginal Affairs Department 87, 88

Aboriginal Material Preservation Fund 87

Albany Cemetery Board 102

Albany Health Service 91

Albany Port Authority 73

Animal Resources Authority 87

Armadale-Kelmscott Memorial Hospital 91

Augusta District Hospital 91

Bank of Western Australia Ltd 101

Bentley Health Service 91

Beverley District Hospital Board 91

Beverley Frail Aged Lodge Inc. 100

Boddington District Hospital Board 95

Boyup Brook Health Service 91

Bridgetown District Hospital Board 91

Brookton District Hospital Board 91

Broome District Hospital 91

Bruce Rock War Memorial Hospital Board 91

Building and Construction Industry Training Board 74–75

Bunbury Cemetery Board 102
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Bunbury Health Service 41, 91

Bunbury Water Board 81

Busselton District Hospital 91

Carnarvon Regional Hospital 91

Chowerup Cemetery Board 102

Coal Mines Accident Relief Trust Fund 71

Collie Health Service 91

Commission on Government 64

Commissioner for Workplace Agreements 80

Commissioner of Main Roads Western Australia 47–48

Construction Industry Long Service Leave Payments Board 80

Coolgardie Nursing Home 91

Corrigin District Hospital Board 91

Country High School Hostels Authority 66, 104

Cue Nursing Post 91

Cunderdin District Hospital 91

Dalwallinu District Hospital 91

Dampier Port Authority 73

Denmark District Hospital 91

Department of Conservation and Land Management 79

Department for Family and Children’s Services 28, 29, 58–62

Department for the Arts 79

Department of Land Administration 53, 71–72

Department of Productivity and Labour Relations 80

Derby Regional Hospital 95

Disability Services Commission 29, 82

Donnybrook/Balingup Health Service 91

Dried Fruits Board 69, 70



111

Dumbleyung District Memorial Hospital Board 91

Dundas Health Service 92

Dwellingup Cemetery Board 102

East Perth Redevelopment Authority 83

Education Department of Western Australia 49–55, 58, 59, 61, 62, 66–68, 104

Enterprise Park Business Association 100

Esperance Health Service 92

Exmouth District Hospital 92

Fitzroy Crossing District Hospital 92

Fremantle Hospital 90

Fremantle Port Authority 73

Gascoyne Development Commission 65

Geraldton Health Service 92

Geraldton Port Authority 106

GF Limited 101

Gnowangerup District Hospital Board 92

Gold Corporation (Lanka) Pty Ltd 101

Goldfields-Esperance Development Commission 65

Goomalling Health Service 92

Government Employees’ Superannuation Board 32–34, 77, 106

Grain Corporation of Western Australia Pty Ltd 101

Great Southern Development Commission 65

Halls Creek District Hospital 92

Harvey District Hospital Board 92

Hawthorn Hospital 92

Health Department of Western Australia 35–46, 87–89, 97, 104, 105

Herd Improvement Service of Western Australia 69

Horticultural Produce Commission 69
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James T. Pollard Convalescent Hospital 92

Jerramungup Hospital Board 92

Kalamunda Health Service 92

Kalgoorlie Regional Hospital 41, 92

Katanning Health Service 92

Kellerberrin Memorial Hospital Board 92

Kimberley Development Commission 65

King Edward Memorial Hospital for Women 90

Kojonup District Hospital Board 92

Kondinin District Hospital Board 95

Kukerin Nursing Post Board 92

Kununoppin and Districts Hospital Board 92

Kununurra District Hospital 92

Lake Grace and Districts Health Service 92

Laverton District Hospital 92

Legal Contribution Trust 78

Legal Costs Committee 78

Leonora District Hospital 92

Local Health Authorities Analytical Committee 87

Lotteries Commission 29

Lower North Metropolitan Health Service 92

Marble Bar Nursing Post 92

Margaret River District Hospital 92

Meekatharra District Hospital 92

Menzies Nursing Post 92

Merredin Health Service 93

Metropolitan (Perth) Passenger Transport Trust 73

Metropolitan Cemeteries Board 86
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Minerals and Energy Research Institute of Western Australia 71

Ministry of Justice 78, 104

Ministry of Sport and Recreation 54

Moora District Hospital Board 93

Morawa and Districts Health Service 93, 105

Mount Henry Hospital 93

Mount Magnet Nursing Post 93

Mukinbudin Nursing Post Board 93

Mullewa Health Services, Board of Management 93

Nannup District Hospital Board 93

Narembeen District Memorial Hospital Board 93

Narrogin Regional Hospital 93

Newman District Hospital 93

Nickol Bay District Hospital 93

North Midlands District Hospital Board 93

Northam Regional Hospital 95–96

Northampton Kalbarri Health Services 93

Northcliffe Nursing Post Board 93

Numbala Nunga Nursing Home and Hospital 93

Office of Seniors’ Interests 23, 25

Office of the State Supply Commission 82

Official Corruption Commission 64

Onslow District Hospital 93

Paraburdoo District Hospital 93

Peel Development Commission 65

Peel Health Services 96

Pemberton District Hospital Board 93

Perpetual Finance Corporation Ltd 101
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Perth Dental Hospital 90

Perth International Centre for Application of Solar Energy 65

Perth Market Authority 69

Perth Theatre Trust 78

Pilbara Development Commission 65

Pingelly District Hospital Board 93

Plantagenet District Hospital Board 93

Police Licensing and Services Division 84–85

Port Hedland Port Authority 73, 107

Port Hedland Regional Hospital 93

Potato Marketing Corporation of Western Australia 69

Princess Margaret Hospital for Children 90

Public Sector Management Office 24, 25

Public Service Commission 30

Quadriplegic Centre Board 93

Quairading District Hospital Board 93

R & I Delegated Agencies 100

R & I Holdings 64

R & I Investment Holdings Pty Ltd 101

R & I Life Limited 101

Racecourse Development Trust 77

Racing Penalties Appeal Tribunal of Western Australia 77

Rally Australia Management Ltd 101

Ravensthorpe Health Service 93

Real Estate and Business Agents Supervisory Board 76

Rockingham-Kwinana District Hospital 93

Roebourne District Hospital 93

Rottnest Island Authority 74
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Rottnest Island Nursing Post Board 93

Royal Perth Hospital 90

Sandstone Nursing Post 94

Screen West (Inc.) 78, 108

Secondary Education Authority 66, 107

Settlement Agents Supervisory Board 76

Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital 90

Small Business Development Corporation 65

South West Development Commission 65

Southern Cross District Hospital Board 94

State Employment and Skills Development Authority 74

State Supply Commission 38, 39, 40, 82, 128

Subiaco Redevelopment Authority 83

Sunset Hospital 94

Swan District Health Service 94

Swan River Trust 78

Tambellup Nursing Post Board 94

Telfer Nursing Post 94

The Aboriginal Affairs Planning Authority 78, 88

The Anzac Day Trust 64

The Board of the Art Gallery of Western Australia 78, 107

The Burswood Park Board 78

The Carnarvon Banana Industry Compensation Committee 69

The Coal Miner’s Welfare Board of Western Australia 71

The Director of Legal Aid and Others in Trust 100

The Eastern Goldfields Transport Board 73

The Fruit Growing Industry Trust Fund Committee 69

The Grain Pool of Western Australia 69
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The Kings Park Board 78

The Library Board of Western Australia 78

The National Trust of Australia (W.A.) 83

The Potato Growing Industry Trust Fund Advisory Committee 69

The Poultry Industry Trust Fund Committee 69

The Queen Elizabeth II Medical Centre Trust 87

The Western Australian Centre for Pathology and Medical Research 87

The Western Australian Egg Marketing Board 69, 70, 108

The Western Australian Museum 78

Tom Price District Hospital 94

Totalisator Agency Board 77, 105–106

Treasurer’s Annual Statements 64

Trustees of the Public Education Endowment 66

Trustees of Western Australia Limited (formerly R&I Trustees Ltd) 101

TW Custodians Limited 101

WA Mint Pty Ltd 101

Wagin Health Service 94

Wanneroo Hospital 94

Warren District Hospital Board 94

Water Authority of Western Australia 71, 81

Waterways Commission 81

West Kambalda Nursing Post 94

Western Australian Alcohol and Drug Authority 87

Western Australian Building Management Authority 82

Western Australian Coastal Shipping Commission 73

Western Australian Department of Training 55

Western Australian Exim Corporation 77

Western Australian Financial Institutions Authority 78
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Western Australian Fire Brigades Board 84, 107

Western Australian Fire Brigades Superannuation Board 84

Western Australian Greyhound Racing Association 77

Western Australian Health Promotion Foundation 87

Western Australian Institute of Sport 74

Western Australian Land Authority 71

Western Australian Meat Industry Authority 69

Western Australian Meat Marketing Corporation 69

Western Australian Sports Centre Trust 75

Western Australian Tourism Commission 74

Wheatbelt Development Commission 74

Wickepin Nursing Post 65

Wickham District Hospital 94

Williams Medical Centre Board 94

Wiluna Nursing Post Board 94

Wongan Hills District Hospital Board 94

Wooroloo District Hospital 94

Wyalkatchem-Koorda and Districts Hospital Board 94

Wyndham District Hospital 94

Yalgoo Nursing Post Board 94

Yarloop Health Service 94

York District Hospital 94

Zoological Gardens Board 78



119

RECENT REPORTSRECENT REPORTS

Details of Reports issued by the Office of the Auditor General prior to the dates

below are available from the OAG Reporting and Communications Branch

Telephone 222 7530.

1992 Tabled

First General Report 1992 – Report No 1 April 7, 1992

Management of the Recruitment and Selection Process

 in the Public Sector – Report No 2 November 3, 1992

Second General Report 1992 – Report No 3  November 10, 1992

Review of Performance Indicators Reported in

  1990-91 – Report No 4  November 11, 1992

Management of Information Systems in the Public

  Sector– Report No 5  November 17, 1992

Management of Government Social Concessions

  – Report No 6  December 1, 1992

1993

First General Report 1993 – Report No 1  June 17, 1993

Internal Audit in Selected Government Agencies

   – Report No 2 November 2, 1993

Child Care in Western Australia   – Report No 3 November 10, 1993

Public Sector Travel

  Corporate Card

  Main Roads Properties

  Mining Royalties – Report No 4  November 16, 1993

Second General Report 1993 – Report No 5 December 2, 1993
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1994

Utilisation of School Facilities in the Metropolitan Area

  – Report No 1 March 24, 1994

Grants to Non-Government Organisations

Pastoral Leases

Records Management

Purchasing – Report No 2 May 11, 1994

First General Report 1994 – Report No 3 June 15, 1994

Public Hospital Waiting Lists Information: Waiting Times

  — The Real Issue – Report No 4 October 19, 1994

Financial Assistance to Industry

Public Rental Housing

University Consultancy Services – Report No 5 November 3, 1994

Second General Report 1994 – Report No 6 December 7, 1994

Public Sector Performance Indicators 1993–94 December 7, 1994

1995

Legal Aid Commission – Report No 1 April 5, 1995

Police Department Operations Centre – Report No 2 May 4, 1995

First General Report 1995 – Report No 3 May 17, 1995

Management and Control of Minicomputer–based Systems in

  Western Australian Government Agencies – Report No 4 May 23, 1995

Management of the Public Bank Account Investments

  – Report No 5 August 23, 1995

Value for Money in TAFE – Report No 6 August 30, 1995

Public Sector Travel

Corporate Card

Cabcharge Facilities – Report No 7 September 19, 1995

Hospital Emergency Departments – Report No 8 November 1, 1995

Contracting for Services – Report No 9 November 22, 1995

Second General Report 1995 – Report No 10 December 5, 1995

Public Dental Services – Report No 11 December 6, 1995
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GOOD PRACTICEGOOD PRACTICE
STATEMENTS ANDSTATEMENTS AND
OTHER PUBLICATIONSOTHER PUBLICATIONS

Obligations of CEOs and Senior Executives under the

Financial Administration and Audit Act (FAAA)

Introduction

Your Obligations as a CEO and, indirectly your Senior Executives, are detailed

in the Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985, and Treasurer’s Instructions

(TI’s) under the title of Accountable Officers and Accountable Authorities.

The duties and responsibilities of both are essentially the same, however they

are set out in different sections of the Act.

The sections referred to in the following summary deal with the CEOs’

(Accountable Officers’) obligations in regards to Departments.

General Statutory Obligations

CEO obligations includes the requirements to:

ensure within their agency (s53);

the efficiency and economy of operations and the avoidance of waste

and extravagance;
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Obligations of CEOs and Senior Executives under the FAAA

regular, annual reviews of fees/charges and proper collection of moneys

due;

controls over expenditure in accordance with legal requirements;

custody, control, management and accounting for assets under the

agency’s control;

the effectiveness of accounting and financial management systems;

the development and maintenance of an effective internal audit

function;

maintenance and monitoring of the delivery of programs to achieve

objectives;

regard is had to financial considerations in policy decisions, and

execution; and

the appointment of a certifying officer.

appoint a Principal Accounting Officer and advise the Auditor General of

such (s56);

prepare and issue an accounting manual (s18);

prepare accounting systems which harmonise with Treasurer’s Accounts

(s16) and other accounts as required by the Treasurer’s Instructions (s17);

prepare trust statements and submit to the Treasurer and the Auditor General

(s10);

furnish the Auditor General with such information as he thinks necessary (s85);

furnish the Treasurer with such information he thinks necessary (s58A);

ensure, with the Minister, that no action is taken and no obligation is entered

into, which would prevent or inhibit the provision of information to the

Parliament (s58C);

comply with the Treasurer’s Instructions which have the force of law and

must be observed. (s58(4)).

Statutory Reporting Obligations

prepare and submit to the Minister an annual report within two months

after end of financial year, containing financial statements, performance

indicators, report on operations and other information required to be

disclosed under the TI’s (s62).
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Obligations of CEOs and Senior Executives under the FAAA

A copy of the financial statements and performance indicators must also be

forwarded to the Office of the Auditor General before August 15 for

Departments (s63) and within two months after the end of the financial year

for statutory authorities.

Obligations under Treasurer’s Instructions

Receipt of Moneys

Moneys received are the responsibility of collector/s appointed by the CEO.

Collectors should promptly acknowledge the receival of all moneys by issuing

receipts.

Collectors should not be engaged in the assessment of fees and charges, banking

of moneys and dealings with debtors accounts except where CEOs acknowledge

that it may not be possible to segregate these duties, such as Offices with small

staff numbers.

All receipts are to be on pre-printed receipt forms or by cash register or

computerised imprints.

A system should be in place to ensure all receipts are accounted for, including

cancelled receipts.

All moneys received by collectors should be banked on a daily basis. However,

with CEO’s approval, banking can be less than daily where the total collections

are less than $500 providing that such collections do not remain unbanked for a

period exceeding five working days.

All moneys received are to be recorded in a cash book or equivalent and

reconciled at least monthly to bankings to ensure all moneys received are brought

to account. For agencies operating on the Government Accounting System, the

Credit Batch Register, which records all the details of cash and journal transfer

(credit) transactions, acts as a cash book

For further details refer to Part II of the Treasurer’s Instructions – Receipt of

Moneys.
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Obligations of CEOs and Senior Executives under the FAAA

Payment of Moneys

Every payment must be certified by a Certifying Officer and authorised by an

Incurring Officer, both appointed by the CEO. Certification of payments by

Certifying Officers forms the cornerstone of control in the payment process.

Each Certifying Officer’s specimen signature or other appropriate identification

is to be recorded in a register. No payment should be made unless certified as

correct by the Certifying Officer in that:

money is lawfully available for the payment;

the account for payment is correct and properly classified;  and

the payment of the account is authorised by an officer incurring the expense.

The role of the Incurring Officer in the payment process is an integral part of the

system of control over the payment of moneys. The Incurring Officer’s signature

on the payment voucher provides the Certifying Officer with an assurance that

the payment details are correct in terms of the Treasurer’s Instructions. However,

consideration needs to be given to whether it is cost beneficial to  require every

payment to be incurred and certified by separate officers. CEOs have the

discretion to allow payment vouchers to be incurred and certified by the one

officer where the payment is for $1 000 or less. A register of Incurring Officers,

similar to the Certifying Officer requirement, is to be maintained. Every payment

voucher should be certified by the Incurring Officer as to:

correctness in regard to computations and rates of charges;  and

the satisfactory supply of goods or performance of services.

A creditors’ register should be maintained to record details of all payments with

appropriate systems and controls in place to ensure that all payment vouchers

processed are complete, accurate and properly recorded.

Where cheques are prepared by agencies, then all cheques should be signed by

two officers except where the CEO has approved the use of facsimile signatures.

When appointing signatories to cheques consideration should be given to:

placing of a monetary limit on the value of each individual cheque that

signatories may sign;  and

limiting the purposes and accounts for which signatories may draw and

sign cheque.
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Specimen signature of each signatory should be recorded in a register.

Where a Certifying Officer is required to draw a cheque, in respect to a payment

voucher certified by the Certifying Officer, then the cheque should be counter-

signed by another officer.

For further details, refer to Part III of the Treasurer’s Instructions – Payment of

Moneys.
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Financial Administration and Audit Act (FAAA)

Introduction

Each Accountable Officer or Authority has the responsibility for the proper

custody, control, management and accounting for all public property owned or

held (s53 or s55).

Public property is defined by the Financial Administration and Audit Act (FAAA)

to include all property, other than public moneys and moneys of a statutory

authority, held for or on behalf of the State or statutory authority (s3). The

Treasurer’s Instructions (TI) include more details of the accountability

requirements.

Summarised below are the key features of the Treasurer’s Instructions and

Regulations under the FAAA and other considerations in respect to public

property.

Procedures and Practices

Procedures and practices for public property should be in place and specified in

the agency’s accounting manual.

The manual should provide guidelines to ensure that:

the property is properly received and classified (TI 405);

the property is accurately recorded in the public property registers;

total values of public property registers are periodically reconciled with

accounting records;

the property is safeguarded at all times (TI 406/407);

physical inventory is taken annually (or on other approved basis) and agreed

with public property registers (TI 406); and

the property is disposed of with proper authority (TI 408).
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Public Property Registers

Public property registers are required to be maintained for the following

individual assets valued at more than $1 000 and a useful life greater than two

years:

office equipment and furniture;

computing hardware and software;

vehicles of every description, leased or owned;

scientific equipment; and

any other item that should, in the opinion of the Accountable Officer/

Authority, be included.

Details of ‘other’ public property required to be maintained in registers include:

major library materials;

livestock;

saleable public property;

land, buildings and other real assets;

copyrights, patents, trademarks and licenses;

gifts of property received by the agency; and

any other items considered appropriate by the Accountable Officer/Authority

(TI 410).

Insurance

The Accountable Officer/Authority has the responsibility to ensure that there is

an appropriate level of insurance cover over all insurable risk of the agency

(TI 812). This includes public property and other property where considered

relevant.

Write-off Thresholds

Accountable Officers/Authorities may write-off single transactions of

property, revenue or debts to the value of $5 000 (Reg 10).

Ministers may write off single transactions of property, revenue or debts to

the value of $50 000 (Reg 10).
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Values over $50 000 require ministerial approval providing:

prior approval of the Governor for property held for and on behalf of

the State; and

in respect to statutory authority, subject to the terms of any written law

applicable to that statutory authority (s45).

Disposal of Public Property

Public property may be disposed of in the following ways:

transfer to another public sector agency;

public tender;

public auction;

trade-in; and

other means as approved by the State Supply Commission (SSC) in writing,

or, in the case of a totally exempt public sector agency, as approved by the

agency’s accountable officer or authority.

Where the estimated value is less than $ 1 000, the method and manner of disposal

is at the discretion of  the agency’s accountable officer or authority

(TI 812 and SSC policy).

Proceeds of the Disposal of Public Property

Where a relevant written law does not provide for how the proceeds of the

disposed property is dealt with, then:

If the acquisition cost of the public property was met by a capital contribution

in an agreement with another body or person, that initial contribution shall

be repaid, and the remainder credited to the Consolidated Fund (Reg 26).

If the source of the funds used to acquire the property cannot be determined

or where a Trust Fund is funded solely by appropriation from the

Consolidated Fund, the proceeds of disposal shall be credited to the

Consolidated Fund (Reg 26).
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Bodies of State Government Agencies

Introduction

In Western Australia many public sector agencies are run by a body comprised

of people with various interests and skills drawn from the community.

Under Government policy, members of the public have an opportunity to be

considered for membership of such bodies, being normally a board or a

committee, when vacancies arise or when a new government agency is set up.

An appointment to a board or committee carries with it many serious

responsibilities and obligations. Lack of knowledge of those responsibilities can

damage both the individual and the agency for whose performance they are

accountable.

It is therefore vital that anyone currently undertaking or newly-chosen for such

an important position fully understands the scope of the task so that they are

able to contribute in a meaningful and positive way to the administration of

their agency.

This pamphlet aims to give a general overview of the various obligations and

responsibilities of members of bodies that manage government agencies and

thus assist them in building a more efficient, effective and accountable public

sector. Should you require further information please contact your agency.

Background

Government agencies established by an act of Parliament are often administered

by a number of people specially appointed by a Minister because of their

particular skills or experience in that agency’s area of operations.

These individuals are appointed for a fixed period of time and together make up

a board, commission, authority or committee that is responsible to the Minister

for the general direction, control and operations of the agency.

Members of these governing bodies, as they are called, have very similar roles

and responsibilities irrespective of the size of the agency they run.
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However, some governing bodies may have additional responsibilities under

legislation such as the Public Sector Management Act 1994, State Supply

Commission Act 1991, and Corporations Law. Additionally, under the Financial

Administration and Audit Act 1985 (FAAA), governing bodies of statutory

authorities are accountable for the financial administration of statutory

authorities.

Although the role of members of governing bodies has been documented in a

general way at agencies, many members, especially those appointed for the

first time, may be unaware or uncertain of the full scope of their obligations and

responsibilities.

The following general overview will help.

On Appointment

For members of governing bodies to adequately undertake their specified duties

and meet accountability obligations to the Parliament, they should gain a sound

understanding of the operations of their agency.

This can be achieved by:

becoming familiar with all the legislation under which the agency operates;

developing an understanding of the environment in which the agency

operates;

staying informed of all significant matters affecting the agency;

attending all board meetings;

thoroughly reading board papers and external articles relevant to issues

affecting the agency; and

actively participating as a member of the governing body.

Fulfilling Your Obligations

Governing bodies are established to provide general direction and control of,

and to take overall responsibility for, the operations of agencies. They do not

manage agencies – this is the role of management. Rather they oversee the

management of agencies.



131

Roles and Responsibilities of Members of Governing Bodies of State Government Agencies

When appointed to governing bodies members undertake a solemn obligation

to carry out their duties in a fair, open, honest and accountable way to the

benefit of the agency and the community it serves. These are called fiduciary

responsibilities.

Members may also have legal responsibilities imposed by the various legislation

that applies to the agency, including enabling legislation which establishes the

agency.

Overall, members’ responsibilities are similar to those of directors of public

companies to their shareholders and other stakeholders. Fiduciary responsibilities

are onerous, particularly because in many cases members are responsible for

the expenditure of taxpayers’ money and the custody and control of public assets.

Fiduciary Responsibilities

Because of their position of trust, members’ actions and standards of behaviour

are required to be exemplary. In fact recent legislation to establish new agencies

frequently includes details of fiduciary responsibilities and specifies penalties

for any breaches.

Members are thus expected to always act, and be seen to act, in the best interests

of the agency, the State and the community by:

being scrupulously honest and exercising all due care and diligence in the

performance of their duties and functions;

maintaining the confidentiality of information made available and also of

board or committee discussions;

avoiding any action that could affect their judgement when dealing with

agency matters;

never making improper use of their position, or from the information gained

through that position, to the advantage of themselves or any other person;

never taking any course of action that would disadvantage the agency;

consciously avoiding any conflict of interest ; and

disclosing any material or personal interest in an agency matter, and

subsequently abstaining from any discussion or vote on the issue.
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always acting in the best interests of the agency and not particular interest

groups;

being bound by, and committed to, decisions legitimately taken by the board;

and

providing authorised persons, fellow members and auditors when asked

with complete and correct information that is not misleading in any respect.

Overall, members are expected to be role models of corporate behaviour for

the community and should at all times adhere to those high standards.

Legal Responsibilities

Members’ primary legal responsibilities are often included in an agency’s

enabling legislation. In some cases this legislation may also provide for penalties

where those responsibilities have not been properly carried out.

Other legislation too may impose certain obligations on members. This can

include:

Public Sector Management Act 1994

Part 2 of this Act requires all public sector agencies to comply with a number of

General Principles in such areas as public administration and management,

human resources management and official conduct. Members have a

responsibility to ensure that their agencies are complying with these principles,

including:

Public administration and management

Public sector bodies are to be structured and administered so as to enable

decisions to be made and action taken without excessive formality and with

a minimum of delay.

Administered responsibilities are to be clearly defined and authority is to be

delegated sufficiently to ensure that persons to whom responsibilities are

assigned have adequate authority to deal expeditiously with questions that

arise.

Public sector bodies should have as their goal a continued improvement in

the efficiency and effectiveness of their performance.

Resources are to be deployed so as to ensure their most efficient and effective

use.
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Proper standards of financial management and accounting are to be

maintained.

Proper standards are to be maintained in the creation, management,

maintenance and retention of records.

Human resource management

All selection processes are to be based on a proper assessment of merit and

equity.

No power is to be exercised on the basis of nepotism or patronage.

Employees are to be treated fairly and consistently and are not to be

subjected to arbitrary or capricious administrative acts.

There is to be no unlawful discrimination against employees or persons

seeking employment.

Employees are to be provided with safe and healthy working conditions.

Official conduct

All public sector bodies and employees are to:

comply with public sector standards, codes of ethics and applicable codes

of conduct;

act with integrity in the performance of official duties and are to be

scrupulous in the use of official information, equipment and facilities; and

exercise proper courtesy, consideration and sensitivity in their dealings with

members of the public and employees.

Financial Administration and Audit Act 1985

Section 55 of the FAAA makes an agency’s governing body accountable for:

Efficiency and economy of operations and the avoidance of waste and

extravagance.

Regular annual reviews of fees and charges and the proper collection of all

money paid to the agency.

The control of expenditure to ensure this meets all legal requirements.

All public property and other property under the agency’s control.

The effectiveness of accounting and financial management information

systems.
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The development and maintenance of an effective system of internal control

and an effective internal audit function.

Maintaining and monitoring the effective delivery of programs to achieve

objectives.

Ensuring that at all stages in framing and reaching policy decisions, and in

their subsequent implementation, consideration is given to financial impacts

and outcomes.

The appointment of certifying officers.

Other sections of the FAAA require members to ensure that :

Annual estimates of financial operations are prepared and submitted to the

Minister for approval.

Proper accounts and records of all transactions and affairs are kept, especially

in the case where money is received.

All payments are correctly made and properly authorised.

Adequate control is maintained over public property and the incurring of

liabilities.

An up to date accounting manual is issued to staff.

A report on operations, financial statements and performance indicators

are prepared and submitted to the Minister annually.

State Supply Commission Act 1991

Part 3 of this Act requires all agencies to comply with Supply Policies relating to

the acquisition, storage, distribution and disposal of goods and services.

Other Legislation

Members also may have additional responsibilities and obligations under other

legislation, such as the:

 Disability Services Act 1993

Requiring the preparation and implementation of a disability services plan

(section 28).

Environmental Protection Act 1986

Requiring referral of proposals significantly affecting the environment, and

control of environmental pollution (sections 38, 118, Part V).
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Equal Opportunity Act 1984

Requiring the preparation and implementation of an equal opportunity plan

(section 145).

Freedom of Information Act 1992

Requiring public access to documents and publication of information

statements (sections 4, 94).

Library Board of Western Australia Act 1951

Requiring the maintenance of a records management system (section 30).

 Occupational Health, Safety and Welfare Act 1984

Requiring the provision and maintenance of a working environment in which

employees are not exposed to hazards (section 19).

Official Corruption Commission Act 1988

Requiring notification of possible corrupt conduct (section 7F).

 Workers’ Compensation and Rehabilitation Act 1981

Requiring compensation for and rehabilitation of workers suffering disability

by accident or disease in the course of employment (section 18).


